

**8770**

No. \_\_\_\_\_

# Supreme Court of Illinois

Calvin Gold

---

vs.

Ryan, Assignee,

---

71641  7

State of Illinois & Gallatin County  
In the Gallatin Circuit Court

Original  
Bill.

Albert G. Caldwell & Ebenezer Z. Ryan assignees  
of the President Directors and Company of  
the Bank of Illinois at Shawneetown

No

Calvin Gold & Hannah Gold

November the 8th 1850. The complainants,  
filed in the office of the clerk of said court  
their bill in chancery in words and figures,  
following to wit.

"State of Illinois In the circuit court of Gallatin  
Gallatin County, } or county in chancery setting  
November Term A.D 1850.

To the Hon William A Denning Presiding in  
chancery in Gallatin County Illinois  
Humbly complaining sheweth unto your  
Honor your Petitors Albert G. Caldwell of  
Gallatin <sup>County</sup> and Ebenezer Z. Ryan of Lawrence  
county Ills assignees of all the rights credits  
and debts due to the President Directors and  
company of the Bank of Illinois at Shaw-  
neetown that heretofore to wit on the 27th day  
of April A.D 1836. Calvin Gold and Hannah  
Gold his wife by their certain deed of Inden-  
ture commonly called a mortgage deed  
granted bargained and sold aliened and  
conveyed unto the President Directors & Comp-  
any of the Bank of Illinois all these

Mortgage of  
27<sup>th</sup> April 1836.

2000-1

Original  
Bill.

2  
certain tracts of land described as follows  
situate in said Gallatin county Illinois  
That is to say the  $\frac{1}{2}$  of the SW quarter of section  
Twelve Town 10 S. R nine East, NW<sup>1/4</sup> of the  
SW<sup>1/4</sup> of section Twelve in Town 10 S. R nine  
east the NE<sup>1/4</sup> of the SE<sup>1/4</sup> sec Eleven Town  
Ten south Range nine east the south east  
quarter of section thirty one T 10 south Range  
Ten East. West half SW<sup>1/4</sup> sec Thirty one T 10 R  
10 East. the SE<sup>1/4</sup> of the SW<sup>1/4</sup> of sec 31 T 10 R. R 10  
east also one hundred and ~~thirty~~<sup>Twenty</sup> four acres  
more or less part of N<sup>1/2</sup> and the E<sup>1/2</sup> of  
section no one in Town Ten south Range nine  
east. Patented to our Benjamin White & him  
conveyed to the heirs of John Brown decd  
and sold under decree against them  
to McLean and by him to said C Gold  
also the following lots in part of in lot  
in Shawneetown No 1145 containing eighty three  
feet front on the river. also seventeen feet  
front on the river being parts of in lots  
No 1159 & 1160 in Shawneetown where Mr. McColes  
then lived also the half of in lot 1146 fronting  
104 feet on main street and fifty two feet on  
main cross street in said town where our  
Mr. McDaniels then lived also in lot in said  
town no 1151 excepting so much of the same  
as was then occupied by the house of John  
~~McGuire~~<sup>McGuire</sup> decd and extending back with the width  
of said house to the back line of said lot  
which last lot was then mortgaged to our  
Henry Eddy. Your Orators state that the

Original  
Bill

Note of 27<sup>th</sup>  
A.D. 1836

3  
said Mortgagee deed was subject to a condition whereunder written by which it was witnessed that whereas the said Gold did on the said 27<sup>th</sup> April A.D. 1836 execute and deliver his certain promissory note to the President Directors &c of the Bank of Illinois for Two Thousand Dollars payable in one hundred and eighty days after the date thereof with interest thereon at the rate of Eight per cent per annum from due until paid then if the said Calvin Gold should not well and truly pay the said promissory note according to the tenor and effect thereof with all interest which might grow due thereon and in case the said note was renewed for the same or any smaller sum part thereof should well and truly pay the amount of said renewed note with all interest to grow due thereon and so on for any other renewal the said mortgagee deed was to be null and void otherwise to be in full force, which said deed duly executed and acknowledged was recorded in Gallatin County on the 10<sup>th</sup> May 1836. Your  
Debtors further shew unto your Honor  
that in conformity with <sup>the terms of</sup> said condition  
the said Calvin Gold on the day of  
A.D. renewed the said note by giving  
his note to the President Directors &c of the  
Bank of Illinois for the sum of \$  
payable in months from said date  
with eight per cent interest upon which  
said renewed note there is due to the  
Bank of Illinois the sum of \$

Note in  
renewal  
of same.

4  
Original  
Bill

which sum your orators as their assigns  
are well entitled to have out of said  
mortgaged premises. Your orators nevertheless  
the said Hannah Gold by the execution of said  
deed aliened and released her dower in  
the premises wherein described, your orators  
further shew unto your Honor that on  
the 10th day of May A.D 1837 that the said  
Calvin Gold and Hannah his wife by their  
certain other Mortgage deed executed by the  
said Hannah so as to release her right  
of dower did grant bargain sell alien &  
convey unto the President Directors and  
Company of the Bank of Illinois all their  
lands in gallatin county described as follows  
The South half of south west quarter of sec thirty  
four Town nine south Range nine east also  
the West half of the North West quarter of section  
Thirteen in Township ten south of Range nine  
east also the east half of the south west  
quarter of section twenty four in Town nine  
south Range nine east also the south west  
quarter of the north east quarter of section  
eleven in the same Township and Range  
also the south west quarter of the south west  
quarter of section twelve in the same Town-  
ship & Range. also the north west quarter  
of the north east quarter of section eleven  
in same township & Range. also all the  
lands and tenements contained in the  
afore described mortgage dated 27th April  
1836. The intention of said Calvin Gold being  
that this Mortgage should cover all and

2nd Mortgage  
of 10th May  
1837.

Original  
Bill.

every interest in the said first described lands which might revert to the said parties of the first part after paying the debt thereby secured - which last recited mortgage was subject to a condition therein written, which recited that the Bank had that day lent to the said Gold the sum of Two Thousand Dollars, for which the said Calvin Gold had that day executed his promissory note to them of which he promised to pay them One hundred and ninety days after the date thereof the said sum of Two Thousand Dollars with eight per cent interest thereon it was further witnessed thereof that if the said Calvin Gold should well and truly pay and discharge the said note according to the tenor and effect thereof with all the interest and costs which might grow due thereon, and in case of the renewal of said note for the same or any smaller sum should well and truly pay the amount of said renewed note with all the interest that might grow due thereon and so on for any subsequent <sup>or further</sup> renewal then the said conveyance to be void otherwise to be in full force & effect, which said deed after being duly acknowledged was recorded in Gallatin County 8th June 1837 all of which will more fully appear by reference to said Mortgage a copy of which is herewith filed as exhibit (B) and referred to as part of this Bill Your Petitioners aver that afterwards to wit on the      day of      A.D.      the said Calvin Gold renewed his said note secured as above according to the above condition and executed

Note of 10<sup>th</sup>  
May 1837

Note in  
Renewal of  
Same.

Original  
Bill.

his renewed note by which he promised to pay  
after the date thereof the sum of  
\$ to the said President Directors and  
Co with interest at the rate of eight per cent  
per annum until due your Orlators alledge  
that there is now due and in arrear upon said  
renewed note the sum of Dollars  
for which sum they have right to have said  
two Mortgages foreclosed and payment out  
of their property wherein described awarded to them.

*3<sup>rd</sup> Mortgage  
of 26<sup>th</sup> June  
1839*

Your Orlators further shew unto your Honor  
that on the 26<sup>th</sup> day of June A.D. 1839. the said  
Calvin Gold and Hannah his wife the said  
Hannah thereby releasing her dower did by  
their certain deed of Mortgage of that date  
grant Bargain alien sell and convey unto  
the said President Directors & Company of  
the Bank of Illinois at Shawneetown  
all the following lands, to wit. the west half  
of the south west quarter of section Thirteen  
Town Ten south Range nine east also the  
east half of the south east quarter of section  
fourteen in same Township & Range also  
the south west quarter of the north east quarter  
of section Twenty one Township nine south of  
Range ten east also the North east quarter of the  
North east quarter of section eighteen in Town-  
ship eleven south Range Ten east also all  
the lands and tenements in the two last  
Mortgages in this bill set out as dated April  
27. 1836 and 10<sup>th</sup> May 1837, between the same  
parties, the intention being that the last  
recited mortgage should cover any and

Original  
Bill.

Note of 26<sup>th</sup>  
June. 1839.

all interest which might revert to the said parties after satisfying the intents and purposes of said two recited mortgages of 1836 & 1837. which said mortgage deed was and is subject to a condition therein written of which it was witnessed that as the said President Directors and company of the Bank of Illinois had on that day lent to the said Colvin Gold Two Thousand Dollars, for which he the said Colvin had executed to them his promissory note bearing even date therewith of which he promised to pay the said sum with interest thereon at the rate of eight percent per annum from due until paid seven months after the date thereof. Then if the said Gold should well and truly pay to the <sup>Bank</sup> the amount of said promissory note according to the terms and effect thereof and in the event of his renewing the same, for the same or any smaller sum, should well and truly pay such renewed note and so on until the entire debt should be extinguished the said deed was to be void otherwise to remain in full force and effect. which said deed was duly recorded on the 16th day 1839 all of which will more fully appear by a copy thereof herewith filed marked exhibit (C) and referred to as part of this record bill.

Four Doctors, alledge and declare that afterwards to wit on the      day of      A.D.      the said Colvin Gold according to the condition of said Mortgage deed renewed the said note and executed his other note of that date payable to the said President

Note in  
renewal  
of same.

Original  
Bill.

Directors &c for the sum of  
Dollars with eight per cent interest thereon  
from due until paid, payable in seven  
months after the date thereof of which said  
note with the interest thereon accrued is still  
due and ~~said~~ owing amounting to  
Dollars for which amount your executors have  
a right to have said Mortgage foreclosed

4<sup>th</sup> Mortgage  
of 20<sup>th</sup> Aug.  
1840.

Your executors further shew unto your  
Honour that afterwards to wit on the 20<sup>th</sup> day of  
August 1840 the said Calvin Gold and  
Sarah Gold his wife of their certain deed  
of Mortgage of that date in consideration  
of One thousand nine hundred Dollars  
granted bargained and sold to the Pres-  
ident Directors and company of the Bank  
of Illinois all and singular the lands  
tenement, and real estate of what kind  
and nature soever named described or referred  
to in the then above recited Mortgage Deeds  
executed - Calvin Gold & Sarah Gold his wife  
to the said Bank and bearing date the  
first on the 10<sup>th</sup> day of April 1836, the second on the  
10<sup>th</sup> day of May 1837, and the third on the 26<sup>th</sup> day  
of June 1839 as fully and completely  
as though the said premises were therein  
separately described and set down and  
for this purpose it was by the said Mort-  
gage recited that the three <sup>said</sup> several mortgages  
are made part and parcel of the last  
recited mortgage, which said Mortgage  
was rendered upon the express condition  
that as the said parties of the second part

9  
Original  
Bill -  
Note of 20<sup>th</sup>  
Aug. 1840.

Whereunto had that day lent to Calvin Gold  
the sum of Nineteen Thousand Dollars  
for which <sup>the</sup> said Calvin had that day executed  
his promissory note payable to the said  
President Directors & Co of said Bank in  
seven months after <sup>the</sup> date thereof with interest  
thereon at the rate of eight per cent per annum  
from date until paid there off the said  
Lawrence should well and truly pay the  
said note when the same became due  
and on renewal pay the renewed note accor-  
ding to its terms and effect then the said  
Mortgage was to be void otherwise to remain  
in full force and virtue. Your orators  
alleged that the said note thus last described  
with all interest that is still due and in arrear  
amounting now to the sum of Three Thousands  
four hundred and ~~forty~~ <sup>forty</sup> three Dollars which said  
sum your orators have a right to claim and  
demand out of the lots and real estate in said  
then recited Deeds of Mortgage contained and  
described as will more fully appear by reference  
to said Deeds of Mortgage a copy of which is  
herewith filed marked Exhibit (D) annexed to  
be taken as part of this bill. Your orators  
further shew unto your Honor that went for  
on the 9th day of September 1840 the said Calvin  
Gold by his Deed of Mortgage of that day acknow-  
ledged and recorded did Grant Bargain alien  
sell and convey unto the said President Directors,  
Co of the Bank of Illinois all those certain  
lots and parcels of Land described as follows  
to wit in Shawneetown on lot no 1085, 1086,  
1087, 1088, 613, 614, 615, 616, 793, 794, 795, 796, 797, 798.

5<sup>th</sup> Mortgage  
of 9<sup>th</sup> Sept:  
1840.

Original  
Bill.

10  
799, 800, 609, 610, 611, & 612 all of which are numbered  
as above upon the Town plot of Shawmut town  
Gallatin County which said mortgage deed  
is subject to a condition hereunder written of  
which it is witnessed that whereas the said  
President Directors &c of the Bank of Illinois  
had on that day loan to the said Calvin Gold  
Twelve Hundred Dollars for which sum he had  
executed to them his promissory note payable  
in seven months after the date thereof with interest  
thereon at the rate of eight per cent per annum  
from due until paid then if the said Gold  
should well and truly pay to the said President  
Directors &c the said note and all the interest  
thereon accruing according to its terms or in the  
event of renewal should pay such renewed note  
according to its terms the said deed to be void  
otherwise to be in full force & effect - Your orators  
allege that the money for which said last note  
was given is all in arrear and unpaid and  
amounts to the sum of Two Thousand one  
hundred and four dollars for which sum your  
orators have right to sell the lots in the last deed  
of Mortgage enumerated your orators refer to  
a copy of said Mortgage Deed herewith filed  
marked exhibit (E) and proposed to be accepted  
as a part of this bill. The original Mortgage  
having been filed for record & recorded in Gallatin  
County Oct. 2 1840.

Your orators alledge that all the said several  
sums of money in the said notes & mortgages  
specified amounting in the aggregate to the  
sum of Eleven Thousand two hundred Dollars

Note of 4<sup>th</sup>  
Sept 1840

11  
Original  
Bill.

Dollars are still due and in arrear.  
Wherefore your Graciers pray the People's most  
gracious writ of summons in Chancery directed  
to the said Calvin Gold and Hannah Gold  
commanding them &c<sup>o</sup> and upon a hearing  
of this cause to take an account of the monies  
so due your Graciers under said Mortgag<sup>e</sup>  
and decree a sale of the lands and lots<sup>therein</sup> specified  
to satisfy the debt thereby chargeable and  
to grant such other and further relief as to  
Your Honor may seem meet and proper  
as in duty bound &c

A. G. Caldwell  
for Complainants

First mortgage recited in bill

"This Indenture made this 27<sup>th</sup> day of April 1836  
between Calvin Gold and Hannah his wife of  
Shawneetown Gallatin county Illinois of  
the first part, and the President Directors  
and company of the Bank of Illinois of the  
second part, witnesseth That the said parties  
of the first part for and in consideration  
of the sum of Two Thousand Dollars law-  
full money of the United States to them in  
hand paid by the <sup>said</sup> parties of the second part  
the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged  
have granted bargained aliened and sold  
and conveyed and by these presents do grant  
bargain alien sell and convey unto the  
said parties of the second part their successors  
and assigns forever all those the following  
described tract parcels & lots of land situated  
in said county that is to say.

Copy of 1<sup>st</sup>  
Mortgage of  
27 April 1836.

12  
Copy of 1st  
Mortgage of  
27 April 1836.

The East half of the south west quarter of section  
Twelve in Township ten south in Range nineteen east  
containing eighty acres. The north west quarter of  
the south west quarter of section Twelve in Township  
Ten south in Range nineteen east containing forty acres  
The north east quarter of the south east quarter of  
section eleven in Township ten south in Range nineteen  
east containing forty acres. The south East fractional  
quarter of section Thirty one in Township ten south in Range  
ten east containing sixteen acres and ten  
hundredths. The west half of the south west quarter  
of section Thirty one in Township ten south in Range  
ten east containing eighty acres ~~and~~  
The south east quarter of the south west quarter of  
section Thirty one in Township ten south in Range  
ten east containing forty acres. One hundred  
and twenty four acres more or less ~~being part~~  
being part of the north half and south east quarter  
of section Twenty one in Town ten south in Range nineteen  
east patented to our Benjamin White and  
conveyed by him to the heirs of John Brown deceased  
and sold under a decree in chancery against  
them to Ephraim A McLean and of him sold to  
said C Gold & on third paid for. The upper part  
of in lot in Shawneetown N<sup>o</sup> Eleven hundred and  
forty five containing eighty three feet front on the  
river & when the Banking house stands and the  
said Gold's store is now kept. The lot and meadow  
where Mrs. Soles now lives being seventeen feet  
front on the river and embracing part of in lots  
in Shawneetown N<sup>o</sup> Eleven hundred and fifty nine  
and Eleven hundred and sixty. The half of in lot  
in Shawneetown N<sup>o</sup> Eleven hundred and forty six

Copy of 1st  
Mortgage of  
27 April, 1836.

fronting 104 feet on main street and fifty two feet  
on main cross street & now in the occupation of  
W<sup>m</sup> McDaniels. also in lot in Shannontown Eleven  
hundred and fifty one excepting so much of the same  
as is occupied in part on cross street of the house of  
John Milwaukee<sup>2</sup> and extending back of the same  
width of said house to the back line of said lot  
which said lot is subject to a prior mortgage to  
Henry Eddy. To have and to hold the <sup>said</sup> above  
described premises, and each and every parcel  
thereof unto them the said parties of the second  
part, and their successors and assigns forever  
as a good and indefeasible estate in fee simple  
and the <sup>said</sup> Calvin for himself and his heirs, covenant  
not to and with the said parties of the second  
part and their successors and assigns, that he  
is well seized of the ~~above~~ premises except as  
aforesaid, and that he will forever warrant  
and defend the same, against all persons  
claiming or to claim the same by, from or  
under any person or persons whatever.  
Nevertheless, and this conveyance is made upon  
this express condition that whereas the said  
parties of the second part have this day lent  
to the said Calvin the sum of Two Thousand  
dollars for which he executed to them his  
monopoly note, bearing even date herewith  
by which he promises, to pay the same One  
hundred and ninety days after the date thereof  
with interest thereon at the rate of eight per cent  
per annum from due till paid. Now if  
the said Calvin shall well and truly pay  
the said parties of the second part the

Copy of 1<sup>st</sup>  
Mortgage of  
27 Apl. 1836-

amount of said promissory note according to the tenor and effect thereof with all interest which may accumulate thereon. And in case of the said note being renewed for the same or any smaller sum by the consent of the said parties of the second part shall well and truly pay the amount of such renewed note with all interest to grow due thereon and so on for any subsequent or further renewals. Then this conveyance to be null & void but otherwise to be and remain in full force and absolute at law -

And it is understood that the said Calvin is not to be ejected from the possession of the said above described premises, or any parcel thereof until default shall be made in the performance of the condition of this conveyance.

In witness whereof the said parties of the first part have hereunto set their hands & seals the day & year above written

C Gold <sup>(Seal)</sup>  
Annah Gold <sup>(Seal)</sup>

State of Illinois  
Gallatin County } acs

Before me the undersigned Notary Public in and for said county duly commissioned and sworn this day appeared Calvin Gold and Annah Gold his wife both personally known to me to be the real persons who have subscribed the foregoing deed and severally acknowledged the same to be their free and voluntary act for the purposes therein mentioned, and the said Annah wife of the said Calvin being made fully acquainted with the contents of said deed and examined separately

Certif. of  
acknowl-  
edgment:

apart from her said husband according to law declared on such her privy examination that she had executed the said deed and relinquished her ~~sight of her~~ <sup>sight of her</sup> Dover in the said premises freely voluntary without compulsion of her said husband all which I accordingly hereby certify

In testimony whereof I have herein  
notary Subscribed my name and affixed my  
public notarial seal at Shawntown in said  
county this 28th day of April 1836

Sam. O'marshall  
notary public

State of Illinois,  
Gallatin County, Ill.

Certyf. of record -  
I Leonard White recorder in  
and for said county do certify that I have  
deed recorded the within deed in my office in  
Book F page 141

Given under my hand and seal  
of office at Equality this 10th day of  
May 1836

Leonard White "

Note referred to in the above mortgage  
" \$2000<sup>00</sup> Bank of Illinois Shawntown

1 Sept 1840

Copy of note Seven months after date we or either of us, promise to pay to the President Directors &c of the  
Bank of Illinois Two Thousand Dollars  
with interest at the rate of eight per cent per  
annum from due until paid without  
defalcation for value received

C. Galdos

Copy of  
Second  
Mortgage of  
10 May 1837

Second Mortgage referred to in bill as exhibit  
(B) "This Indenture made this 10th day of  
May 1837 between Calvin Gold and Hannah  
his wife of the first part and the Presidents  
Directors & Company of the Bank of Illinois  
at Shawneetown of the second part  
Witnesseth, that the said parties of the first  
part for and in consideration of the sum of  
Two Thousand Dollars, to the said Calvin  
in hand paid ~~the~~<sup>receipt</sup> of which is hereby acknowl-  
edged have granted bargained aliened sold  
and conveyed and by these presents do grant  
bargain alien sell and convey unto the said  
parties of the second part their successors  
and assigns forever all and singular the  
following described lands and tenements,  
situate in the County of Gallatin <sup>Illinois</sup> to wit  
The south half of the south west quarter of  
Section thirty five in Township nine South in  
Range nine east containing 80 acres purchased  
of the said Calvin at the land office in  
Shawneetown on the 12th day of Sept 1836.  
also the west half of the northwest quarter of  
Section Thirteen in Township ten south Range  
nine east containing 80 acres, purchased as  
aforesaid on the 18th day of March 1837.  
Also the East half of the south west quarter  
of section Twenty four in the same Town-  
ship and Range containing 80 acres, and pur-  
chased as aforesaid on the 26th day of May 1836.  
Also the south west quarter of the northeast  
quarter section eleven in the same township  
and Range containing 40 acres, and

Copy of 2<sup>nd</sup>  
Mortgage of  
10<sup>th</sup> May 1837.

Purchased as aforesaid on the 18th day of March 1837. Also the south west quarter of the south west quarter of section twelve in the same township and Range containing 40 acres and purchased of one John M Leech at the same land office on the 2<sup>d</sup> day of May 1836. and transferred by him to the said Calvin on the same day by endorsement of the receipt. Also the north west quarter of the north east quarter of section eleven in the same township and Range containing 40 acres and purchased of one George Barker at the same land office on the 21<sup>st</sup> day of October 1836 and conveyed by him to the said Calvin by deed bearing date the 6<sup>th</sup> day of March 1836. Also all and singular the lands tenements contained and described in a certain deed of Mortgage executed by the said parties of the first part to the said parties of the second part and bearing date the 27<sup>th</sup> day of April 1836 the intention being that this conveyance shall cover any and all interests which may revert to the said parties of the first part or either of them aftersatisfying the intents and purposes of that Mortgage to have and to hold the said above described premises and each and every parcel thereof with the rights and appurtenances, reversions and remainders thereof unto the said parties of the second part their assigns and successors forever as a good and indefeasible estate in fee simple. And the said Calvin for himself and his heirs covenants to and with the said parties of the second

Copy of 2<sup>nd</sup>  
Mortgage of  
10<sup>th</sup> May 1837

part their assigns and successors. That he is well seized of the said premises with qualifications aforesaid and in said former mortgage specified. and that he will forever warrant and defend against all persons claiming or to claim the same of from or under any person whatever. Nevertheless, and this conveyance is made upon this express condition that whereas the said parties of the second part have this day lent to the said Calvin the sum of Two Thousand Dollars, for which the said Calvin has executed to them his promissory note bearing even date here-with of which he promises to pay the said sum with interest thereon from due till paid at the rate of eight per cent per annum, one hundred and ninety days from the date thereof. Now if the said Calvin shall well and truly pay the said parties of the second part the amount of said promissory note according to the tenor and effect thereof with all interest which may grow due thereon, and in case of the said <sup>note</sup> being renewed for the same or any smaller sum with the consent of said parties of the second part shall well and truly pay the amount of such renewed note with all interests which may grow due thereon, and so on for any subsequent or further renewals. Then this conveyance to be void but otherwise to remain in full force and absolute at law. And it is understood that the said Calvin is not to be ejected.

from the possession of the said premises or  
any parcel thereof until defaults shall be  
made in the performance of the condition  
of this conveyance & the said Calvin is to  
pay all taxes in the mean time.

In witness whereof the said parties of the  
first part have hereunto set their hands  
and seals the day and year & date first  
above written

Calvin Gold 

Hannah Gold 

State of Illinois,

Gallatin County } Asst Procuror <sup>The undersigned</sup>  
place in & for said county this day of ~~January~~  
appeared Calvin Gold and Hannah his wife  
both personally known to me as the real  
persons who have subscribed the foregoing  
deed and severally acknowledged the same  
to be their voluntary act for the purposes  
therein mentioned. and the said Hannah  
being examined of her separate & apart  
from her said husband according to law  
& having the said deed read & fully explained  
to her she declared that she had executed  
the same and relinquished her dower in  
the premises thereby conveyed freely and  
voluntarily & without compulsion of her  
said husband all of which facts I do hereby  
certify under my hand this 12 day of May 1837.

Thos F Vaughn 

State of Illinois,

Gallatin County } I Leonard White recorder in and  
for said county do hereby certify that  
I have dug Recorded the within deed in my

Office in Book G, Page 251.

Given under my hand and seal of office  
at Equality this 8<sup>th</sup> day of June 1837,

Lead White.

Vote referred to in second mortgage  
"\$2500.00) Bank of Illinois Shawmutown

21 Aug 1840

Seven months after date I promise to pay  
to the Presidents Directors & Co of the Bank  
of Illinois Two Thousand five hundred  
Dollars with interest at the rate of eight  
per cent per annum from due until paid  
without defalcation for value received

Not

C Golds.

Copy of 3<sup>rd</sup>  
mortgage of  
24 June 1837

Third mortgage referred to in bill as exhibit (C)  
This Indenture made this 26<sup>th</sup> day of June  
1839 between Calvin Golds and Hannah his wife  
of the first part, and the Presidents Direc-  
tors and company of the Bank of Illinois  
at Shawmutown of the second part witnesseth,  
that the said parties of the first part for  
and in consideration of the sum of Two  
Thousands Dollars to the said Calvin in hand  
paid the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged  
have granted bargained and sold and by  
these presents do grant bargain alien sell  
and convey unto the said parties of the  
second part their successors and assigns  
forever all and singular the following  
described lands and tenements situate  
in the county of Gallatin Illinois to wit  
The west half of the south west quarter of section

Thirteen in township ten south in range nine east containing 80 acres, also the east half of the southeast quarter of section fourteen in same township and range containing 80 acres, also the south west quarter of the North east quarter of section twenty one in township nine south in range ten east containing 40 acres, also the North east quarter of the northeast quarter of section eighteen in township eleven south in range ten east containing 40 acres.

Also all and singular the land tenements, and real estate contained, and described in two certain deeds, of Mortgage executed by the said parties of the first part to the said Bank and bearing date, the first, on the 27<sup>th</sup> day of April 1836, and the second on the 10<sup>th</sup> day of May 1837. the intention of the parties hereto being that this conveyance shall cover any and all interests which may revert to said parties of the first part or either of them after satisfying the intents and purposes of said former Mortga-  
ger respectively.

To have and to hold the said above described premises, and each and every parcel thereof with the rights, and appurtenances, reversions, and remainders, therof unto them the said parties of the second part their successors and assigns forever as a good and indefeasible estate in fee simple. And the said Calvin for himself and his heirs covenants, to and with the said parties of the second part, their successors and assigns, that he is well seized of the said premises with the qualifications, in said former Mortga-  
ger mentioned and that he will forever warrant and defend the same against all persons.

38720-21

Copy of 3<sup>d</sup>  
Mortgage of  
26 June 1839

claiming or to claim the same of from or under any and all persons, whatever.

Nevertheless, and this conveyance is made on this express condition that whereas the said parties of the second part have this day lent to the Calvin the sum of Two Thousand Dollars, from which the said Calvin has executed to them his promissory note bearing even date herewith, of which he promises to pay the said sum with interest thereon at the rate of eight per cent per annum from due till paid seven months after the date thereof now if the said Calvin shall well and truly pay to the said Bank the amount of the said promissory note according to the terms, tenor and effect thereof and in the event of his being allowed to renew the same for the same or any other less amount shall well and truly pay such renewed note according to the terms, tenor and effect thereof and so on until the said debt shall be fully paid and extinguished. Then this conveyance to be void but otherwise to be and remain in full force and absolute as law and it is understood & agreed by and between the parties hereto that the said Calvin shall and may retain possession of the said premises until default shall happen in the performance of foregoing condition and in the mean time the said Calvin agrees that he will pay all taxes and other assessments upon the said premises whether levied for ~~the~~ State county or other purposes whatever.

In witness whereof the said parties of the

first Part have hereunto set their hand and  
seals the day and date first above written.

Calvin Gold   
Sarah Gold 

State of Illinois,  
Gallatin County } set

Certif. of  
acknowledg-  
ment

Before me the undersigned a  
Justice of the peace in and for said county this  
day appeared Calvin Gold and Sarah his  
wife both personally known to me to be the  
real persons who have subscribed the foregoing  
Deed and severally acknowledged the foregoing  
Deed to be their free and voluntary act for the  
purposes therein mentioned. And the said  
Sarah being made acquainted with the contents  
of said Deed and examined of her separate  
and apart from her said husband according  
to law she declared on such her separate  
examination that she had executed the said  
deed and relinquished her right of Dower in  
the premises thereof conveyed freely and volun-  
tarily and without the compulsion of her said  
husband all of which I accordingly hereby certify  
under my hand this 23rd day of June AD 1839

H. F. Vaughan 

State of Illinois,  
Gallatin County } I Leonard White recorder in and  
for said county do certify that I have recorded  
the within Mortgage deed in my office in Book  
A Page 529.

Given under my hand and seal  
of office at Equality this 16th day of  
July A.D. 1839

Leonard White

11 Note referred to in the last recited mortgage  
~~\$1900.00~~) Bank of Illinois Shawntown 20 Augt 1840

Copy of  
 Note of 20<sup>th</sup>  
 Aug. 1840.

Seven months after date we or either of us promise  
 to pay to the President Directors & Co. of the Bank  
 of Illinois One Thousand nine hundred  $\frac{00}{100}$   
 Dollars with interest at the rate of eight per cent  
 per annum from due until paid without defal-  
 cation for value received

C Gold "

Copy of 4<sup>th</sup>  
 Mortgage  
 of 20 Aug.  
 1840-

Fourth mortgage referred to in Bill as Exhibit (D)  
 11 This Indenture made this 20th day of August 1840  
 between Calvin Gold and Hannah his wife of  
 Gallatin County Illinois of the first part, and  
 the President Directors & Company of the Bank  
 of Illinois of the second part, witnesseth, That the  
 said parties of the first part, for and in consid-  
 eration of the sum of One Thousand nine  
 hundred Dollars lawful money of the United  
 States to the said Calvin in hand paid of the  
 said parties of the second part the receipt of which  
 is hereby acknowledged, have granted bargained  
 & sold, and by these presents do grant bargain and  
 sell alien and convey unto the said parties of  
 the second part their successors and assigns  
 all and singular the lands tenements and real  
 estate of what kind or nature soever named and  
 described or referred to in three several Deeds of  
 Mortgage executed by the said parties of the  
 first part to the said parties of the second part  
 and bearing date the first on the 27th day of April 1836  
 the second on the 10th day of May 1837 & the third  
 on the 26th day of June 1839 at full and completely  
 as if the said premises were herein fully and

separately described and set downe and for this  
purpose said there several deeds of mortgag or  
made part and parcel of this deed, To have  
and to hold the said premises each and every  
part and parcel thereof as in said there several  
deeds or in any of them described with all the  
rights privileges appurtenances remainders and  
reversion therof unto them the said parties of  
the second part their successor and assigns  
forever as a good and indefeasible estate in  
fee simple and the said Calvin for himself and  
his heirs covenant, that the same are unincum-  
bered except of those former mortgages and that  
he will forever warrant and defend the same  
against himself and his heirs and against  
all other persons whatsoever. Nevertheless, and  
this conveyance is made upon this express condi-  
tion, That whereas the said parties of the second  
part have this day lent to the said Calvin the sum  
of Nineteen hundred Dollars for which the <sup>said</sup> Calvin  
has this day executed his promissory note bearing  
even date herewith for the payment thereof seven  
months after date with interest thereon at the rate  
of eight per cent per annum from due till paid  
Now if the said Calvin shall well and truly pay  
the said note when the same shall become due  
and in the event of his being allowed to renew  
the same for the same or any other amount shall  
well and truly pay and satisfy said renewed  
note and so on as often as he shall be allowed to  
renew until the whole debt shall be fully finally  
and fully paid and extinguished Then this  
conveyance to be void but otherwise to remain  
in full force and absolute as law

And the said Calvin reserves the right to continue  
in possession of the said premises, as against this  
mortgage until defaulter shall happen in the  
performance of the foregoing conditions during  
which time he agrees that he will pay all taxes  
and other legal assessments thereon.

In testimony whereof the said parties  
of the first part have hereunto set their hands  
and seals the day and year first above written

C Gold Seal

Hannah Gold Seal

State of Illinois,

Gallatin County } set

Before me the undersigned

Certif. of  
acknowledgment a Notary Public in and for said county this day  
appeared Calvin Gold and Hannah his wife  
both personally known to me to be the real persons  
who have subscribed the foregoing Deed and sever-  
-ally acknowledged the same to be their <sup>and voluntary</sup> free and  
deed for the purposes therein mentioned, and the  
said Hannah wife of the said Calvin being made  
acquainted with the contents of the said deed and  
examined of her separate and apart from her  
said husband according to law, she declared  
on such her separate examination that she had  
executed the said deed and relinquished her Dower  
in the premises thereby conveyed freely & voluntarily  
and without the compulsion of her said husband  
which I hereby certify. In testimony whereof

I have hereunto set my hand & affixed my notarial  
Seal of office in Shawmut town this 22<sup>nd</sup> day of  
August 1840

James Sarah  
Notary Public

27  
State of Illinois  
Gallatin County 201

Recorder's  
certif-

I Leonard White Recorder in  
& for the county aforesaid do certify that I have  
on this day duly recorded the within deed of Mortgage  
in my office Liber R folio 527.

In testimony whereof I have hereunto set  
my hand & affixed seal this 5<sup>th</sup> day of  
September 1840

Leonard White Rec

By J.R. Finley Dep Rec "

Note referred to in the last above Mortgage  
" \$1,800.00 Bank of Illinois Shawntown 17<sup>th</sup> Sept 1840

Seven months after date we or either of us promise  
to pay to the President Directors & Co of the  
Bank of Illinois Eighteen Hundred Dollars  
with interest at the rate of eight per cent per annum  
from due until paid without defalcation  
for value received C. Gold

4.

Copy of 5<sup>th</sup>  
Mortg. of  
9 Sept. 1840.  
Fifth mortgage referred to in bill as exhibit (E)  
This Indenture made this 9<sup>th</sup> day of September  
1840 between Calvin Gold of Shawntown  
Illinois of the first part and the President  
Directors and company of the Bank of Illinois  
at Shawntown of the second part. Witnesseth,  
That the said party of the first part for and in  
consideration of the sum of Two hundred hundred  
dollars lawful money of the United States to the  
said Calvin in hand paid the receipt of which  
is hereof acknowledged have granted bargained  
alieneed sold and conveyed and by these  
present do grant bargain alien sell and convey  
unto the said parties of the second part their

Copy of 5<sup>th</sup>  
Mort. of 9<sup>th</sup>  
Sept. 1840.

Successors and assigns forever all and singular  
the following described lands and tenements  
and real estate that is to say In lots in Shannum-  
ton at<sup>t</sup> One thousand and eight five (1085) One  
thousand and eight six (1086) One thousand and  
eight seven (1087) One thousand and eight eight  
(1088) Six hundred and thirteen (613) Six hundred  
and fourteen (614) Six hundred and fifteen (615)  
Six hundred and sixteen (616) Seven hundred and  
ninety three (793) Seven hundred and ninety four  
(794) Seven hundred and ninety five (795) Seven  
hundred and ninety six (796) Seven hundred and  
ninety seven (797) Seven hundred ninety eight  
(798) Seven hundred and ninety nine (799) Eight  
hundred (800) Six hundred and nine (609)  
Six hundred and ten (610) Six hundred and  
eleven (611) and Six hundred and twelve (612)  
to have and to hold the <sup>said</sup> above described premises,  
and each and every part and parcel thereof  
with the rights and appurtenances, reversions,  
and remainders thereof unto the said parties of  
the second part their successors and assigns,  
forever, and the said Calvin for himself and  
his heirs covenant to and with the said parties  
of the second part their successors and  
assigns that he is well seized of the said premises  
with the exceptions contained in this, and that  
he will forever warrant and defend the same  
against all persons claiming or to claim the same  
by from or under any person or persons  
whatsoever, Nevertheless, and this conveyance  
is made upon this express condition, that  
whereas, the said parties of the second part

have this day lent to the said Calvin the sum  
 of Twelve hundred Dollars, for which the  
 said Calvin has executed his <sup>to them</sup> promissory  
 note bearing even date herewith of which he  
 promises to pay the said sum with interest  
 thereon at the rate of eight per cent per annum  
 from date till paid and payable seven months  
 after the date. Now if the said Calvin shall  
 well and truly pay the said parties of the  
 second part the amount of said promissory note  
 according to the tenor and effect thereof with  
 interest thereon as aforesaid and in case  
 of the said note being renewed for the same  
 or any smaller sum with the consent of said  
 parties of the second part he shall well  
 and truly pay the amount of such renewed  
 note according to the terms thereof with all  
 interest which shall grow due thereon and  
 so on for any subsequent or further renewal  
 then this conveyance to be null and void ~~but~~  
 but otherwise to remain in full force and  
 absolute at law, and it is understood and  
 agreed between the parties, that the said Calvin  
 is not to be ejected from the possession of the  
 said premises or any part or parcel thereof  
 until default shall be made in the perform-  
 ance of the condition of this conveyance  
 And the said Calvin is to pay all taxes and  
 other expenses in the mean time

In witness whereof the said party of the  
 first part have hereunto set his hand and  
 seal the day and date first above written

C Gald

30  
State of Illinois  
Gallatin County }

Certif of

acknowledg't Notary Public in and for said county this day personally appeared Calvin Gold who is to me personally known as the real person who has subscribed the foregoing deed and acknowledged the same to be his free and voluntary act and deed for the purposes therein mentioned

D D In testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal this 9th day of September A.D 1840

A Redman N.P.

State of Illinois  
Gallatin County Sec

Certif of  
recorder-

I Leonard White recorder in and for the county aforesaid certify that I have on this day duly recorded the within deed in my office Liber R folio 563

Witness my hand and official seal this 14th day of October 1840

Leonard White  
By I Randolph Finley

Note of  
9 Sept  
1840.

Note referred to in last mortgage referred to as exhibit.  
\$1200<sup>00</sup> Bank of Illinois Shawmuton 9th Sept 1840  
Seven months after date we or either of us promise to pay to the president Directors & Co of the Bank of Illinois Twelve hundred Dollars with interest at the rate of eight per cent per annum from due until paid without defalcation for value received

31  
State of Illinois  
Gallatin County, Illino

The people of the State of Illinois,

To the Sheriff of said county -- greeting  
We command you to summon Calvin Gold  
and Hannah Gold if to be found in your county  
to appear before the circuit court of said county  
on the first day of the next term thereof to be  
helden at the court house in Shawntown  
on the third Monday in the month of November to  
answer to a bill of complaint filed in our  
said circuit court on the chancery side thereof  
against them by Albert L. Caldwell and Ebenezer  
L. Ryan assignees of the President Director, and  
company of the Bank of Illinois and herof make  
due return to our said court as the law directs

Witness P E Hall clerk of our said court  
and the judicial seal there of at  
Shawntown this 8th day of Nov  
A D 1850

P. E. Hall Clerk

return  
Expected of reading and leaving a true copy of  
the within with Calvin Gold this 8th day of November  
1850

I. T. Walters, shff Gal Co

By R. C. Marshall & shff

return  
Expected of leaving a true copy of the within  
summons with Hannah Gold Nov 8 1850

John T. Walters shff

W. L. Boyer

Saturday 30<sup>th</sup> Nov<sup>2</sup> 1850

Ordered that the foregoing cause be continued  
till the next term of the court

Demurrer  
to Bill.

The demurrer of Salmon Gold and Sarah Gold  
to the bill of complaint of Albert G. Caldwell and  
Ebenezer F. Ryan as assignees of the President Direc-  
tors and Company of the Bank of Illinois.  
These defendants by protestation not confessing  
it for cause of Demurrer to said bill sheweth  
that complainants have not shewn such case  
as entitles them to any relief or discovery from  
either or both these defendants, and that said  
bill is otherwise informal insufficient &c  
and wherefore they pray judgement of this Honor-  
able Court, whether they shall make other and  
further answers to said bill and pray to be  
hence dismissed with their reasonable costs in  
this behalf sustained &c

Freeman & Olney  
for Dfts

Joiner in  
demurrer.

And said complainant Ebenezer F. Ryan  
survivor of &c says that the matter and things  
contained in this bill aforesaid are sufficient  
to authorize the maintaining the suit aforesaid  
whereof & W. Thomas for complainant

Order 6th October 1851

Death of Cald-  
well suggested

On this day came the complainant, W. Thomas  
their ~~attorney~~ solicitor & suggest the death of  
A. G. Caldwell one of the complainants & assignee  
of the Bank of Illinois upon it is ordered that this cause  
stand and be prosecuted in the name of  
the said Ebenezer F. Ryan as surviving assignee  
and complainant and thereupon caused the  
as well the said complainant Ryan by  
Thomas as the said defendant, F. Olney &  
Freeman their solicitors who file,

Demurrer  
overruled

Demurrer to the bill which was joined by the complainant and the said demurrer is by the court overruled and on motion of complainant the defendants are ruled to answer the bill of 9 o'clock on Thursday next

Monday October 13th 1851

On this day again came the defendant J Alvey his solicitor and on motion the time for answering is extended to 9 o'clock on Saturday next.

Saturday Oct 18<sup>th</sup> 1851

On the 18<sup>th</sup> day of October 1851 came the parties aforesaid and said defendant having failed to answer the bill herein. It is ordered of the court that the bill be and is hereby taken as confessed whereupon the cause being heard upon the bill and exhibits and the court sufficiently advised thereon finds orders and decrees as follows.

First. That there is due to the complainant upon the Mortgage executed by the defendants on the 27<sup>th</sup> day of April 1836 recorded by the recorder of Gallatin County on the 10<sup>th</sup> day of May 1836 and exhibited in the bill Three Thousand Six Hundred & eighty four dollars & forty four cents and that the following land, and tenements were conveyed by said Mortgage to secure the payment of said sum of money (viz) The East half of the South west quarter of section twelve Township ten south Range nine east containing eighty acres North west quarter of South west quarter of section twelve Township Ten south Range nine east containing forty acres,

Decree

The North east quarter of South east quarter  
 of section eleven Township ten south Range  
 nine east containing forty acres, the South  
 East fractional section thirty one Township  
 ten south Range ten east containing sixteen  
 acres & ten hundredths of an acre. the ~~west~~  
 half of the South west quarter of section Thirty  
 one Township ten south Range ten east.  
 containing eighty acres, the South east  
 quarter of South west quarter of section  
 Thirty one Township ten south Range ten  
 east containing forty acres. also One  
 hundred twenty four acres (more or less) part  
 of the North half and South east quarter of  
 Section one in Township ten south Range  
 nine east patented by Benjamin White, conveyed  
 by him to the Heirs of John Brown sold  
 under a decree in chancery against them  
 to Ephraim & McLain and by him sold  
 to Calvin Gold, the upper part of the lot number  
 Eleven hundred & forty five in Shawntown  
 containing eighty three feet front on the river and  
 when the Banking House, ~~stood~~, stood  
 on the 27th day of April 1836 and said Gold's lot  
 was kept. also the lot & meadow where Mr. Cole,  
 lived on the 27th day of April 1836, being seventeen  
 feet front on the river and embracing parts  
 of two lots in Shawntown Eleven hundred & fifty  
 nine & Eleven hundred & sixty the half of a  
 lot in Shawntown number Eleven hundred  
 & forty six fronting One hundred and four feet  
 on main street fifty two feet on main  
 cross street, occupied by William McLain

in 1836. In lot in Shawnee town Eleven hundred  
fifty one excepting so much of the same as  
was occupied in front on Creek street of the  
house of John Milne deceased and extending  
back of the same width of said house to the  
back line of said lot.

Secondly, There is due to said complainant  
on the Mortgage executed on the 10th day of May  
1837, recorded by the recorder of Gallatin County on  
the 8th day of June 1837, the sum of Four Thousand  
six hundred & twenty seven dollars, and seventy  
eight cents and that the following lands and  
tenements were conveyed by said Mortgagor to  
secure the payment of said sum of money  
(viz) The south half of the south west quarter  
of section thirty five Township nine south  
Range nine east containing eighty acres, the west  
half of north west quarter of section thirteen  
Township ten south nine east containing eighty  
acres, the east half of south west quarter of  
Section twenty four Township ten south Range  
nine east containing eighty acres, the southwest  
quarter of north east quarter of section eleven  
Township ten south Range nine east containing  
forty acres, the south west quarter of south west  
quarter of section twelve Township ten south Range  
nine east containing forty acres, the north west  
quarter of the northeast quarter of section eleven  
Township ten south Range nine east containing  
forty acres, also the lands and tenements  
described and conveyed by the aforesaid Mortgage  
of the 27th April 1836.

Third That there is due to the said complain-  
ant upon the Mortgage executed on the 26th

Decree

day of June 1839, recorded by the recorder of Gallatin county on the 16th day of July 1839 the sum of Three Thousand five hundred & four dollars, eighty six cents and that the following lands and tenements were conveyed by said Mortgage to secure the payment of said sum of money (viz) The West half of the south west quarter section thirteen Township ten south Range nine east containing eighty acres, The east half of South east quarter of section fourteen Township ten south Range nine east containing eighty acres, The south west quarter of North East quarter of section twenty one Township nine south Range ten east containing forty acres, The North east quarter of North east quarter of section eighteen Township eleven south Range ten east containing forty acres, also all and singular the lands and tenements and real estate described in and conveyed by the aforesaid two Mortgages executed the 27th April 1836 & tenth of May 1837.

**Fourthly** - That there is due to the said complainants on the Mortgage executed on the 20th day of August 1840 filed for record on the 27th day of August 1840 and recorded on the 5th day of September 1840 the sum of Three Thousand three hundred and nine dollars, sixty cents and that the following lands and tenements were conveyed by said Mortgage to secure the payment of said sum of money to wit the same lands and tenements described and conveyed by them several mortgages hereinbefore mentioned

Fifths. That there is due to the complainant on the mortgage executed on the ~~quinti~~ <sup>5th</sup> day of September 1840 filed for record on the 2<sup>d</sup> day of October 1840 and recorded on the ~~14th day of~~ <sup>14th</sup> October 1840. The sum of Two Thousand two hundred & Eighty dollars Fifty three cents and that the following lands and tenements were conveyed by the said mortgagee to secure the payment of said sum of money, viz In lots in Shawneetown numbered One Thousand & Eighty five, One Thousand & Eighty six, One Thousand & Eighty seven, One Thousand & Eighty eight, Six hundred & thirteen, Six hundred & fourteen, Six hundred & fifteen, Six hundred & sixteen, Seven hundred & nine, Seven hundred & ninety four, Seven hundred & nine, Seven hundred & ninety six, Seven hundred & ninety seven, Seven hundred & ninety eight, Seven hundred & ninety nine, Eight hundred, Six hundred & nine, Six hundred & ten, Six hundred & eleven & Six hundred & twelve, which said several sums the court finds due upon notes, filed with said Mortgages and made part of the record herein.

Whereupon the court further orders and decrees that the said defendant Galvin Gold pay to John C. Hall the Master in Chancery of Gallatin County for the use of complainant the aforesaid sums of money amounting in the whole to seventeen thousand three hundred and thirty five dollars & twenty one cents within thirty days in notes or certificates of the Bank of Illinois, or current money at

28.

the action and the costs of this suit in current  
money otherwise than the defendant, Calvin  
and Hannah be foreclosed of and for all equity  
of redemption in and to the lands and tenements,  
aforesaid, and that the said lands, tenements,  
and hereditaments, be sold at public auction  
for cash or notes of certificates, of the Bank of  
Illinois at their par value to satisfy the  
several amounts due said complainant  
and for cash to pay the costs herein.

It is further ordered that the property descri-  
bed in the first mortgage herein mentioned  
be first sold and the proceeds of the sale  
applied in satisfaction of the amounts due  
on the same, and if then be any excess  
that such excess be applied toward the  
satisfying the amount due on the second  
third and fourth mortgages herein recited  
according to their order in date and that  
the property described in the second third &  
fourth mortgages, and not included in  
the first mortgage be sold in the order as  
time of said mortgages, and the proceeds  
applied to pay any balance which may  
be due after applying the proceeds of the  
sale of the property described in said first  
mortgage and if then should be any excess  
after paying the amounts due on said  
mortgages and the costs. It is further ordered  
that the property described in the fifth  
mortgage or so much thereof as will be  
sufficient be sold as aforesaid and the  
proceeds applied to the payment of the

Decree

Amount due on said mortgage and costs of this suit, should the costs not have been made out of the other property, it is further ordered that upon making the sales aforesaid deeds be executed to purchasers conveying all of the right title and interest of the parties to this suit in and to the said premises and that said property be sold at the Gatewood House in Shawmutown on a day to be fixed by the master that notice of the time ~~and~~ place and terms of said sale be given by advertisement in the two news papers published in Shawmutown or in one if either be not published four weeks before the day of sale and that upon the completion of the sales or any part thereof the defendants or persons in possession under them surrender such possession to the purchaser or purchasers. It is further ordered that the said John E. Hall Master in Chancery execute this decree and report his action hereon to the next term of this court and that this cause be continued.

Thursday Tuesday 17th February 1852,

On this day came the defendants by Alney & Freeman their solicitors and moved the court to set aside the decree in this cause which motion was based on petition presented by said defendants and filed and the questions of law arising thereon being argued it is ordered that the motion be overruled.

Motion to  
set aside  
decree  
&  
overruled.

Petition of  
defts.

To the Honorable S. S. Marshall, Judge of the Gallatin Circuit court in chancery sitting, your petitioner Calvin Gold would beg leave to represent that on the 8th day of November 1850, Albert G., Caldwell and Ebenezer Z. Ryan assignees of the

President Directors Company of the Bank of Illinois filed their <sup>bill</sup> in Chancery in this Honorable court against your petitioner and Hannah Gold his wife praying them for a foreclosure of certain Mortgages given by your petitioner to said President Directors Company to secure the payment of certain monies therein mentioned which Mortgages are made exhibits in said bill and which said bill and exhibits are prayed to be taken as a part of this Petition

Your petitioner further states that the said bill represents that all of the notes to secure the payment of which said Mortgages were given were canceled except two the one executed on the 20 day of August 1840, for \$1,900<sup>00</sup> due at seven months & the other executed September 9th, 1840, for \$1,200<sup>00</sup> at seven months of the executions of other notes in renewal of those which were cancelled as aforesaid, but your petitioner states that the said bill does not exhibit any of the notes so alleged to have been executed in renewal of said canceled notes, but are represented therein to have been executed on a blank date and for a blank amount and due in a blank number of months from their date, your petitioner states that the only note exhibited in said bill and the two set forth above he states that the said Caldwell departed this life after the filing of said Bill and that at the Sept term 1851, of this Hon court the death of said Caldwell was suggested on the record of said cause & the same revised in the name of the said Ryan as the survivor of said

Petition of  
deft:

affigrees and at the same sept term as aforesaid  
a Demurrer to said Bill was overruled by your  
Honor & your petitioner by the motion of said Ryan  
of Mr Thomas his solicitor was ruled to answer  
the said bill by a day fixed by the court to wit  
the 8<sup>th</sup> day of Oct 1851 and your petitioner states  
that he did not answer the said bill on said  
last mentioned day, but that the Judges minutes  
of the proceedings in said cause shew that further  
time hereinafter to wit the saturday following  
was given to your petitioner to answer said Bill  
but your petitioner states explicitly that he has  
no time during the progress of said cause asked  
the court to grant any time in which he might  
answer said bill nor did his solicitors for  
him but on the contrary your petitioner & his  
solicitors were silent as to the same and  
were willing to abide by the said demurrer  
Your petitioner further states that your Honor  
allowed the said bill to be taken pro confesso  
against the defendant, Mento, at the said  
last mentioned term and at the same time  
rendered a decree against your petitioner and  
his said wife requiring them to pay to Chas E. Hall  
Master in Chancery the sum of \$17,335, 21cts  
of a certain day therein fixed for failure thereof  
requiring the 2<sup>d</sup> master to sell the lands so mortga-  
ged as aforesaid according to the directions of  
said decree for the satisfaction of the said sum of  
\$17,335, 21cts and requiring the purchasers  
under said sale to pay the amount bid as said  
sale in money or paper or certificates of the  
Bank of Illinois at their par value & the said

defts  
petition

deem further orders that the said defendants to  
said bill on failure to pay the said sum of \$17,335,210<sup>05</sup>  
to said master according to the time therein limited  
shall be forever foreclosed & barred of all equity of  
redemption in the lands therein ordered to sold.

Your petitioner prays your Honor to make said  
deed a part of this petition.

Now your petitioner charges that neither he nor  
his solicitors asked for any time in which to ans-  
wer said bill. That he was willing to rely on his  
2d demurrer that the decree being for more than  
the principal and interest of said two notes before  
recited is erroneous & unlawful that it is also  
erroneous ~~& unallowable~~ requiring the purchasers at  
said sale to pay in paper or certificates of the  
2d Bank at their par value instead of being  
allowed to pay the same at their nominal  
value and for foreclosing barring your petitioner of  
his equity of redemption in said land, should they  
be so sold as aforesaid that said decree is erroneous  
for divers other things therein contained.

Your petitioner states that he did not pay the said  
sum of money so decreed against which amount  
is greatly larger than appears from said bill to have  
been due him & that said master has advertised  
to sell said lands on this day. He ~~therefore~~ further  
charges that the notes except the two recited as  
aforesaid in said bill were not exhibited on the  
hearing of said cause that your petitioner had  
no opportunity of objecting to them as not correspond-  
ing with the allegations of said bill & he charges  
that no evidence was offered at said hearing to  
show that the masters upon which a decree purports

to have been rendered (with the two exceptions aforesd) were those given in renewal of so canceled notes. Wherefore your petitioner prays your Honor to vacate & set aside said decree and grant such other general and special relief as the premises may require & as in duty bound.

Calvin Gold

This day personally appeared before me Calvin Gold who states on oath that the matters & things in the foregoing petition so far as stated from his own knowledge are true & so far as stated from the information of others he believes to be true

C Gold

Sworn to before me  
this 23<sup>d</sup> Feb 1852

I, E. Hall clk

Filed 23<sup>d</sup> Feb 1852 I, E. Hall clk

Tuesday 24 February 1852,

On this day came the parties of their solicitors and agree that the record be amended so that the record of the last term shall show, that instead of time being extended for defendant to answer on their motion, that they were allowed time to make their <sup>election</sup> ~~suitation~~ to stand upon the demurrer to the bill or to answer, and that the decree of 20 October 1851 shall state that said defendants having elected to stand by their demurrer herein and having failed to answer &

March 3<sup>d</sup> Wednesday 1852

On this day came the commissioner appointed at a former term of this court to make sale of certain lands & lots and made his report, and also came the defendant

Amendment  
of record - by  
consent.

and filed exceptions thereto and the matter of  
law being argued thereon and the court not  
being sufficiently advised in the premises, takes  
the same under advisement until the next  
term of this court.

Exceptions to the said defendant Calvin Gold excepts to the  
Master's report - report of John C. Hall master in Chancery  
appointed in this cause under a decree of said  
court herein at the Sept Term 1851 thereof, upon the  
following grounds,

1<sup>st</sup> That said report is improperly made to  
this term of said court, the same being a special  
and not a regular term

2<sup>d</sup> Because the notice given by said commissioner  
herein is insufficient in this that it does not  
designate the hours of the day between which the  
said sale of the lands in the said decree mentioned  
should be made that is does not express the  
terms of said sale as required and expressed  
in said decree. That is does not express that  
the said property should be sold for cash or  
notes or certificates of the bank of Illinois at  
their par value. That said notice does not  
set forth that the  $\frac{1}{2}$  of lot N<sup>o</sup> 1146 mentioned in  
said decree was to have been sold at said  
sale for cash, that said notice does not  
contain a sufficient description of said lands  
which were to be sold, That it does not shew  
that the sale which was so advertised was in  
the same cause as that mentioned in said  
decree. That it does not shew that the property  
mentioned in said 5<sup>th</sup> mortgage was to have been

Exceptions  
to Masters  
report-

sold & the proceeds applied to the payment of the amount due on said mortgage and the costs of this suit should the costs not have been made out of the other property. That the part of lot N° 1145 is not property described in said notice according to said decree. That lot N° 1151 nor parts of lots N° 1159 & 1160 are not correctly described according to said decree in said notice that it does not give the style of the suit in said cause nor show in what year the decree under which said sale was ordered was rendered. Th said Hale gives said notice as commissioner.

3<sup>rd</sup> Because said report shows that the part of lot N° 1146 was improperly sold for cash alone instead of being sold for cash or notes or certificates of the Bank of Illinois at their par value

4<sup>th</sup> Because said Hale had no right or power to execute deeds to purchasers under said sale

5<sup>th</sup> Because said notice does not state that the said sale should be made in Gallatin County

6<sup>th</sup> Because the said decree under which the said sale was pretended to have been made was erroneous & unlawful in this. That said decree was rendered for an amount greatly larger than than said complainants in their said bill above themselves entitled to against the said defendant, as will appear by reference to said bill & decree. That said decree requires the purchaser, at said sale to pay for the property so sold under said decree in money or notes or certificates of the Banks of Illinois at their par value

Exceptions to That said decree forever bars and forecloses  
 Master's report all equity of redemption of said Calvin Gold in  
 and to said lands so ordered herein to be sold  
 That said decree improper, and erroneous  
 directs said master to execute deeds to the  
 purchasers under said sale herein ordered  
 to be made of the lands purchased under said sale  
 of 6<sup>th</sup> Because said report does not show that the  
 lands therein reported to have been sold, were  
 sold in the order prescribed in said decree.

7 The said report does not show that said Hall  
 attended said sale at the Gatewood house

Therefore the said Calvin Gold prays this Hon  
 Court that the said report shall not be confirmed

Calvin Gold

Pasey Almy & Freeman  
 for Deft

Tuesday 3<sup>d</sup> Aug 1852,

Order overruling The court being now sufficiently advised  
 Exceptions of and concerning the exceptions taken and filed  
 to the report of sale herein and the motion to set  
 aside the sale on the ground of said exceptions  
 does hereby order and decree that the exceptions  
 and motion aforesaid be and the same are hereby  
 overruled and the court further order, that the  
 report aforesaid be approved and the sales made  
 by said master ratified and confirmed it is further  
 ordered that the bill of costs reported by said  
 Master be allowed and taxed as part of the  
 bill of costs herein and which report is in  
 words & figures following to wit.

In obedience to the decree entered in this  
 cause the said defendant having failed to

pay the amount required of the decree. I published a notice in the "Shawneetown Argus" a public newspaper published weekly in Shawneetown Illinois on the 20th day of January 1852. The publication of which was contained four weeks in succession thereafter stating that I would attend at the Gaterwood House in Shawneetown Illinois on Monday the 23<sup>d</sup> day of February 1852, and offer for sale said property at public vendor to the highest bidder for cash in hand or notes, or certificates of the Bank of Illinois and specie enough to pay all costs, ~~and~~ all and singular the real estate described in the decree describing the same as described in the decree and at the time and place stated in said notice and between the hours of 12 o'clock M and 4 o'clock P.M. I attended and offered the said property for sale in the manner and ~~form~~ upon the terms stated in said notice and the same was sold to the highest bidder as follows.

The east half south west quarter of section twelve Township ten south Range nine east eighty acres to Joseph Logsdon as and for the sum of Two hundred and one dollars, Northwest 1/4 of south west quarter section twelve Township ten south Range nine east forty acres, at and for the sum of fifty five dollars, North east quarter south east 1/4 section eleven Township ten south Range nine east forty acres at and for the sum of Eighty dollars, South east fraction section thirty one Township ten south Range ten east 16 acres and ten hundredths at and for the sum of forty dollars, West half south west quarter section thirty one Township ten south Range ten east eighty acres at and for the sum of

Two hundred dollars, south east quarter of south west quarter of section thirty one township ten south Range ten east forty acres at and for the sum of One hundred Dollars, part of the north half and south east quarter of section one township township ten south Range nine east One hundred and twenty four acres at and for the sum of Five hundred Dollars, upper part of in lot # Eleven hundred and forty five eighty three feet front on the river at and for the sum of Nine hundred Dollars, part of Eleven hundred and fifty nine and eleven hundred and sixty seventeen feet front where Mr. Scales lived in 1836, at and for the sum of One hundred Dollars, half of in lot Eleven hundred and forty six, one hundred and four feet on main street and fifty two feet on main cross street for cash One hundred and eighty dollars, In lot Eleven hundred and fifty one excepting what is occupied by the House of John Milne extending back the width of said House at and for the sum of five hundred Dollars, to William Thomas trustee of the Bank of Illinois, the same being sold on Mortgage executed on the 27<sup>th</sup> day of April 1836, and south half south west quarter section thirty five Township nine south Range nine east at and for the sum of Two hundred dollars, west half ~~south~~ North west quarter section thirteen, township ten south Range nine east eighty acres at and for the sum of One hundred dollars, East half of south west quarter section twenty four same township and Range Eighty acres at and

for the sum of four hundred dollars, south west  
quarter north east quarter section eleven same  
township and Range forty acres ar and for  
the sum of eighty dollars, North west quarter  
North east quarter same section Township  
and Range forty acres ar and for the sum of  
Eighty dollars, South west quarter south  
west quarter section twelve same township  
and range forty acres ar and for the sum of  
Eighty dollars to William Thomas, trustee  
of the Bank of Illinois, the same being sold  
on mortgage executed 10th May 1837, and west  
half south west quarter section thirteen  
Township ten south Range nine east eight acres  
ar and for the sum of one hundred dollars,  
East half south east quarter section fourteen  
same Township and Range eight acres ar  
and for the sum of One hundred and fifty dollars,  
South west quarter North east quarter section  
twelve one Township nine south Range ten  
east ar and for the sum of eighty dollars,  
North east quarter North east quarter section  
eighteen Township eleven south Range ten  
east forty acres ar for the sum of Two hundred  
and forty dollars, to William Thomas, trustee  
of the Bank of Illinois, the same being sold  
on mortgage executed 26th June 1839, And  
In lots in Shawmuttun Illinois numbered  
one thousand and eighty five ar and for the  
sum of ten dollars, One thousand and eighty six  
ar and for the sum of ten dollars, One  
thousand and eighty seven ar and for the sum of  
ten dollars, One thousand and eighty eight

57

at and for the sum of ten dollar, to Zackariah  
W. Garbett & Henry W. Mudd, and number six  
hundred and thirteen at and for the sum of  
ten dollar, Six hundred and fourteen at and  
for the sum of ten dollar, Six hundred and  
fifteen at and for the sum of ten dollar,  
Six hundred and sixteen at and for the sum  
of ten dollar, Seven hundred and ninety three  
at and for the sum of ten dollar, Seven  
hundred and ninety four at and for the sum  
of ten dollar, Seven hundred and ninety five  
at and for the sum of ten dollar, seven hundred  
and ninety six at and for the sum of ten dollar,  
Seven hundred and ninety seven at and for the  
sum of ten dollar, Seven hundred and ninety  
eight at and for the sum of ten dollar, Seven  
hundred and ninety nine at and for the sum  
of ten dollar, Eight hundred at and for the  
sum of ten dollar, Six hundred and nine  
at and for the sum of ten dollar, Six hundred  
and ten at and for the sum of ten dollar,  
Six hundred and eleven at and for the sum of  
ten dollar, Six hundred and twelve at and  
for the sum of ten dollar, To William Thomas  
trustee of the Bank of Illinois on the mortgage  
executed 9th September 1840 all of which was sold  
for notes or certificates of the Bank of Illinois  
at par except half of lot number Eleven  
hundred and forty six which was sold for  
cash as before stated. The whole sale amounting  
in the aggregate to Four thousand  
Three hundred sixty six dollars (\$4,366.)  
The same being the highest and best

bids offered therefor, That in pursuance of said decree the undersigned as such Master executed deeds to the purchasers, for the lots and lands purchased respectively as directed in said decree at the time of advertising the sale aforesaid and to the present time only one newspaper has been published in the county of Gallatin and a copy of the notice of sale published in that paper is herewith attached the property conveyed by the mortgage dated the 27th day of April 1836, sold for the sum of Twenty nine hundred and fifty six dollars, That conveyed by the mortgage dated the 10th day of May 1837 sold for nine hundred and forty dollars, That conveyed by the mortgage dated the 26th day of June 1839 sold for six hundred and twenty dollars, That conveyed by the mortgage dated 9th September 1840, sold for two hundred dollars making in the aggregate the sum of four thousand seven hundred and sixteen dollars, for which several sums the defendant is entitled to a credit on the debt secured by the said mortgages after deducting from each a proportionate amount of the cost, the said Garbutt and Mudd paid to William Thomas trustee of the Bank of Illinois forty dollars, certificates the amount of their purchase and the said Logsdon paid to me of the certificates of said Bank two hundred and one dollars the amount of his purchase, which has been delivered to said Thomas a statement of the cost and expenses of

The sale is hereby apppointed for the order of  
the court heron,

Cost taxed of the clerk in the sum	\$ 13.95
printers fee for advertising sale	8.75
Master's fees for making sale advertising and reporting	45.00
executing 3 deeds	5-
acknowledging 3 deeds	75

I. E. Hall master in Chancery

### Commissioners Sale

Ebenezer L Ryan surviving assignee of the President Director, and Company of the Bank of Illinois  
vs

Calvin Gold and Hannah Gold  
By virtue of a decree made at the September  
term of the Gallatin circuit court in the above  
entitled cause I will offer for sale at the  
"Galewood House" in Shawneetown Illinois,  
on Monday the 23<sup>d</sup> day of February next the following  
described real estate situated in Gallatin County  
Illinois, to wit

6 1/2 SW 1/4 sec 12 Town 10, S Range 9 E. acres 80-	
W 1/2 SW " " 12 " 10 " " 9 " 40-	
N 1/2 SE " " 11 " 10 " " 9 " 40-	
SE.frac " " 31 " 10 " " 10 " 16.10	
W 1/2 SW " " 31 " 10 " " 10 " 80	
SE. SW " " 31 " 10 " " 10 " 40	
S 1/2 SW " " 35 " 9 " " 9 " 80	
W 1/2 NW " " 13 " 10 " " 9 " 80	
E 1/2 SW " " 24 " 10 " " 9 " 80	
SW. NE " " 11 " 10 " " 9 " 40	
SW. SE " " 12 " 10 " " 9 " 40	

N.W. 1/4 "	"	11 "	10 "	" 9 "	40
W.W. SW " "	"	13 "	10 "	" 9 "	80
E. 1/4 SE " "	"	14 "	10 "	" 9 "	80
S.W. NE " "	"	21 "	9 "	" 10 "	40
N.E. NE " "	"	18 "	11 "	" 10 "	40
Prop. of W. D. White " "	"	1 "	10 "	" 9 "	124 -

The last named tract being same land conveyed by Benjamin White to the heir, of John Brown sold under a decree in chancery against them to Ephraim & McLain and of him sold to Calvin Golds, also lots in Shawneetown numbered part of ~~lot~~ 1145, 83 feet front when the Banking house stood 27th April 1836. part of 1159 and 1160 when Mr. Seales lived in 1836. 17 feet front on the river half of 1146. 104 feet on main street and 52 feet on main cross street occupied by Mr. McDaniel in 1836 1151 excepting so much of the same as was occupied by the house of John Milne extending back whole length of lot also 1085, 1086, 1087, 1088, 613, 614, 615, 616, 793, 794, 795, 796, 797, 798, 799, 800, 609, 610, 611, and 612 for cash in hand or notes or certificates on the Bank of Illinois, and specie enough left to pay all costs.

Shawneetown 14th January A.D. 1852

Jan. 20. 20 41 I.C. Hale Commissioner

State of Illinois, Gallatin county, I. S. G. Hutchinson  
Editor and publisher of the Shawneetown  
Argus a public newspaper published weekly  
in Shawneetown Illinois do certify that the  
notice of sale hereto attached has been published  
in said paper four weeks in succession the  
first publication was made on the twentieth  
day of January 1852, and the last on the Eighteenth

54  
day of February 1852 given under my  
hand this 23<sup>d</sup> day of February 1852  
J. G. Hutchinson

Printers fee for publication \$ 875  
Rec'd payment of W. Thomas Trustee of Bank  
of Illinois 23<sup>d</sup> Feby 1852

J. G. Hutchinson

State of Illinois  
Gallatin County & I. S.

I W. Hall Clerk of the Circuit Court for  
said County do certify that the foregoing 54  
pages contain a true and perfect transcript  
of proceedings of a cause in the said Gallatin  
Circuit Court wherein Ebenezer H. Nyack,  
Surviving trustee of the Bank of Illinois  
is complainant & Calvins Gold & Hancock  
Gold are defendants as appears from  
the record & files of my office.

Given under my hand and  
the judicial seal of said Cir-  
cuit Court at Mariontown  
this 22<sup>d</sup> day of September  
1852. W. Hall Clerk

The defendants assign the following as errors appearing upon the foregoing record -

1<sup>st</sup> The Court erred in overruling the defendants' demurrer to the Compt's Bill herein, for the following reasons -

1<sup>st</sup> Because the Compt's do not allege that the assignment to them from the President, Directors & Co. of the Bank of Illinois, was under the seal of said corporation -

2<sup>nd</sup> Because there is no allegation in said Bill that the notes given in renewal of the notes to secure which the mortgages are alleged to have been given - were not paid to said President Directors & Co. before the alleged assignment.

3<sup>rd</sup> Because Mortgages are not strictly assignable, and there is no allegation in said Bill that the ad renewal notes mentioned therein were due to the ad. President, Directors &c. at the time of said alleged assignment - and by the terms of said Bill only those debts which were due passed to the assignee.

4<sup>th</sup> Because the Bill contains no allegation respecting the residence of the defendants -

5<sup>th</sup> Because the several notes charged to have been given in renewal of the notes described in the 1<sup>st</sup>, 2<sup>nd</sup>, 3<sup>rd</sup> & 4<sup>th</sup> Mortgages are described in blank as regards the date, amount, & maturity-

6<sup>th</sup> Because the Bill does not charge that the Mortgage dated 26 June 1839, was either delivered or acknowledged - delivery is essential to its validity - and a delivery may be Evidenced by a proper acknowledgment neither is alleged.

7<sup>th</sup> Because the 1<sup>st</sup> Mortgage on page 13, states that in-lot in Shawneetown No. 1151 was subject to a prior mortgage to H. Soddy, which is also stated in the Bill, and there is no allegation that the Mortgage to Soddy has ever been satisfied, and the bill is therefore defective in not making Soddy a party -

8<sup>th</sup>

Because the right of <sup>to the lands in 5<sup>th</sup> mortgage</sup> ~~Dower of Defendant~~ Hannah is ordered to be sold - That is the decree should have ordered the property in that mortgage to be sold subject to her right of Dower.

9<sup>th</sup> Because the Bill and exhibits would not authorize the Court to render such decree as was rendered.

2<sup>nd</sup>

The decree rendered herein is erroneous for  
the following reasons

1<sup>st</sup> Because the Bill of Complaint shows  
that all of the original notes which  
the mortgages were given to secure,  
except the 5<sup>th</sup> Mortgage, were merged  
and extinguished by the execution  
of other notes in renewal of the same,  
and those other notes are not de-  
scribed, nor exhibited, nor, so far as  
the record shows, given in evidence.

2<sup>nd</sup> Because the 1<sup>st</sup> Mortgage set forth in  
the Bill, describes the note for the se-  
curity of which it was given, as being  
due 180 days after date - while the  
copy of the mortgage (p. 13) filed as an  
exhibit describes the note as being due  
190 days after date, it is not the Mort-  
gage described -

3<sup>rd</sup> Because it orders a sale of the  
lands in the 2<sup>nd</sup>, <sup>4<sup>th</sup> Mortgage, regardless of  
the deft. Hannah's right of dower there-  
in - the certificate of relinquishment  
<sup>of the 2<sup>nd</sup> Mortgage</sup> does not state that she relinquished  
her right of dower upon prior exam-  
ination -</sup>

4<sup>th</sup> Because it orders a sale of in-ls  
in Shawneetown N. 1157 - when both the  
Bill & Mortgage exhibited show that it  
was previously mortgaged to Eddy - and no  
allegations of its satisfaction - therefore Eddy  
should have been a party -

5<sup>th</sup> Because it orders the debt to pay the money to the Master for the use of complainant - when it should have been for the use of the Trustees of the Bank.

6<sup>th</sup> Because it forecloses all Equity of redemption, and does not allow debt 62 months, nor judgment creditors 15 months to redeem -

7<sup>th</sup> Because it only allows purchasers to pay in notes or certificates of the Bank at their par value which is their specie value.

8<sup>th</sup> Because it requires the Master to make deeds to purchasers immediately after the sale - when they are not entitled to deeds until 15 months after sale -

9<sup>th</sup> Because there was no evidence to support any part of the Bill except the 5<sup>th</sup> Mortgage -

10<sup>th</sup> There was no evidence of any assignment to complainant -

3<sup>rd</sup> The Court erred in amending the record after decree of sale -

4<sup>th</sup> The Court erred in confirming the report of Master at the July Term 1852 because that was not a legal term -

3<sup>rd</sup> The court erred in overruling defendant's motion to set aside the decree (p. 39) for the reasons set forth in the defendant's petition.

4<sup>th</sup> The court erred in overruling defendant's Exceptions to the Master's report (p. 40).

The defendant in error says that there are no such errors as the

Master  
for defendant.

Calvin Gold

ms } Error to Gallatin

Ryan Aigner

Prepared

8770

State of Illinois Gallatin County set  
The President Directors & Company of the Bank of Illinois for the use of A G Caldwell and Ebenezer Z Ryan  
John Melvin & James Melvin

Plead Held before the circuit court of Gallatin County Illinois, sitting as a court of Chancery. At the  
Commission in Sherrill at a special term held  
in February 1853

To the Honorable Walter B Scates  
associate Justice of the supreme court of the state of Illinois and assigned to preside in the third Judicial Circuit. Humbly complaining shewith unto your honor your Orators the President Directors and company of the Bank of Illinois for the use A G Caldwell and Ebenezer Z Ryan assignees of the said Bank of Illinois under an act of the General Assembly of the state of Illinois approved the February 1845 entitled an act supplemental to an act to reduce the public debt and put the Bank of Illinois into liquidation and who by an assignment thereof are the beneficial holders of the indebtedness hereinafter mentioned. That one John Melvin was in debt to the said President Directors and Company of the Bank of Illinois, your orators aforesaid by certain promissory notes of tenor and effect following that is to say A note executed by the said John Melvin together with Gabriel Hardison as principal and Peter Stater, David R Wood coexecutives dated day of and due the 15th February 1841 and payable to your orators for the sum of \$105 8<sup>9</sup> plus interest at the rate of eight per cent per annum from due until paid. Also a further note

2

executed by the said John Melvin as security together  
with Gabriel Hardison as principal and Davis B Wood  
and Bennet Hill as cosecurity which note was dated the  
day of 18 due the 3<sup>rd</sup> day of December 1842 payable  
to your orators and for the sum of \$517<sup>16</sup>/<sub>100</sub> with interest  
at the rate of eight per cent per annum from due until  
paid - Your orators would further represent that they  
instituted <sup>uit</sup> on the above named notes against the said  
parties thereto, at the <sup>of the Gallatin Circuit Court 1844</sup> before said term  
November 1844 and at the said term the 14<sup>th</sup> day of November 1844  
~~the~~ obtained judgments upon said notes respectively -  
that is to say upon <sup>the</sup> first note above described judgment  
was rendered for \$1394<sup>66</sup>/<sub>100</sub> and upon the second  
note above described judgment was rendered for \$596<sup>25</sup>/<sub>100</sub>  
And your orators further represent that on the 17<sup>th</sup> day  
of March 1845 Executions were issued upon the judgments  
and returned no property found - All of which  
proceedings remain of record in said county and are  
prayed to be taken herewith as part of this Bill.  
And your orators would further represent to your  
Honor that on the 20<sup>th</sup> day of Oct 1844 before the return  
the two aforesaid judgments against the said John  
Melvin he the said John Melvin was possessed and  
seized in fee of the following described real estate  
to wit Lot No 54 and 1/2 of Lot No 55 in the town of  
New Haven and the ~~south~~ SW NE See 18 37 8 R 102  
containing 40 Acres as well as other real estate to  
your orators now unknown also certain goods  
and chattels and should <sup>now</sup> in justice and right  
still be possessed and seized of the legal estate  
in said premises and the same as his absolute  
estate should be liable and subject to the said  
judgments against him and so execution  
thereon -

But now so it is pleas your Honor that the said John Melvin combining with one James Melvin and divers other confederates to your orators unknown but when discovered prayed to be made parties hereto, pretenda that said premises above described are now and were at the time of the rendition of said judgments the full absolute property of the said James Melvin under and by virtue of the deed of Conveyance made and executed on the 22<sup>d</sup> day of Octr 18<sup>th</sup> by the said John Melvin to the said James Melvin as well as other instruments of Conveyance whereby the said premises are alleged to be conveyed to the said James Melvin for and in consideration of \$700, 00. whereas your orators for the use aforesaid charge the contrary thereof to be true and that the aforesaid conveyance ~~in law~~ was made without any good sufficient or valuable consideration in law and with the intent and purpose on the part of the said John Melvin to deceive and defraud your orators another creditors and remove the said premises of the said John Melvin beyond the reach of any executions in favor of your orators under their judgments aforesaid - And your orators further charge that the said James Melvin was aware of the purpose and intent of the said John Melvin in so making such conveyance and received the same knowing it to be fraudulent, and executed without any good sufficient or valuable Consideration in law, Wherefore your orators submit and insist that the said deed of conveyance ought not to be held valid, but should be set aside in a court of Equity, All of which actings and ~~dis~~ pretences are contrary to Equity and good Conscience and tend to the injury of your orators

10

In consideration whereof and for as much as your  
Orators are remediless without the assistance of a court of  
Equity - To the end therefore that the said John Melvin  
and James Melvin together with their confederates  
when discovered may severally upon their oaths according  
to the best of their knowledge information and belief,  
full true and perfect answers make to all and  
every the matters aforesaid and that as fully as if the  
same were here repeated, and they particularly interrog-  
ated thereto and more especially that they may severly  
=ally answer and set forth in manner aforesaid;  
Whether the said John Melvin did not make and  
execute the aforesaid conveyance, to defeat the  
collection of the aforesaid debts out of his property,  
thereby conveyed - Whether at the time and before  
the date of said conveyance the said John Melvin  
did not avow and declare his intention to make  
conveyance of said premises to defeat the collection  
of the debts aforesaid - Whether there was any consideration  
passed from the said — to the said John  
Melvin at and upon the execution of said conveyance  
and if so what was specifically and particular that  
consideration - Whether the consideration if any such  
were given was paid by the said — out of  
his own individual funds and if so from whence  
did he obtain such funds - Whether the con-  
sideration if any such were given was not provided &  
furnished by the said John Melvin or some third  
person to the said James Melvin for that purpose.

Whether there was not a secret understanding  
& agreement between the said John Melvin and the  
said James Melvin, that the premises conveyed as  
aforesaid was to be held for the <sup>use</sup> of the said John Melvin

or the said James Melvin and other children of  
the said John Melvin Whether the said James  
Melvin was not aware from Knowledge infor-  
= mation or belief that the said John Melvin by  
the execution of said Conveyance did design to  
deceive and defraud his creditors and remove  
the premises aforesaid beyond the liability of under  
the said judgments - Whether the arrangement in  
relation to consideration of said Conveyance  
was not preconcerted fictions and intended  
to deceive. Whether it was not privately  
understood and agreed that the said James  
Melvin should never come under any actual  
liability for and in respect to such pretended  
considerations - Whether there is not a private  
understanding between the said John Melvin and  
the said James Melvin that the said James  
Melvin in further conveyance of said premises  
Shall be guided and directed by the said  
John Melvin - Whether the said John Melvin  
since the conveyance aforesaid has derived or  
is to derive the rents and profits of the premises  
aforesaid directly from the tenants or from  
the said James Melvin or through any other  
person. Whether there was any person or persons  
present during the transaction, as above set forth  
if any who wear they? and what were dates of such  
transactions - And that the said James Melvin shall  
fully disclose the amount and kind & description of  
property <sup>so</sup> conveyed to him - And that the said  
Deed of conveyance so made as aforesaid may be  
delivered up to be cancelled and the said prem-  
ises as aforesaid or so much of them as is suffi-  
= ent be subjected to the payment of your

(3770-3)

Orators debts as aforesaid, and under the circumstances  
aforesaid that the said James Melvin be in the mean time  
restrained by the Order and injunction of this Honorable  
Court from conveying the said premises until the  
matter is heard in this behalf, And that your orators  
may have such other and further relief as to your honor  
may seem meet and the circumstances of this case regu-  
= - And may it please your Honor to grant unto  
your Orators the peoples most gracious writs of  
of Subpoena and summons in Chancery to the  
said John Melvin and James Melvin as parties  
defendant to this your Orators Bill as in duty  
bound &c

Caldwell  
for Plaintiff

Endorsed Filed 18th Decr 1845

Levi White clerk

Summons

State of Illinois {  
Gallatin County } etc The people of the State  
of Illinois to the Sheriff of White County, Greeting  
We command you that you summon John  
Melvin and James Melvin if to be found in your  
county to personally be and appear before our  
Circuit Court on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of the next term thereof  
to be commenced and holden at the Court house  
in Equality in said County on the 4 Monday of  
May next then and there to answer the President  
Directors and Company of the Bank of Illinois  
for the use of \$100000 E D Ryan aforesaid  
in a Bill in Chancery Dollars as is alleged and  
hereof make return to our said court as the law  
directs

Seal

Wm & Co., White Clerks of our said  
Court and the judicial seal thereof  
at office in Equality this 15<sup>th</sup> day of  
December AD 1845

Leonard White Clerk

Executed on the within named John Melvin and James  
Melvin by reading and delivering a copy of this writ to  
each Decr<sup>t</sup> 30<sup>th</sup> 1845-

John Phipps Sheriff No 6

Tuesday May 26<sup>th</sup> 1846 Order of the court

On motion a rule is awarded against the  
defendant to answer by 2<sup>d</sup> of June next

June 4<sup>th</sup> 1846 Demurrer

The President Directors & Co vs John & James Melvin  
These defendants by protestation not confessing  
or acknowledging all or any of the matters or things  
in the said bill of complaint contained to be  
true in such manner & form as the same are  
therein and thereby set forth and alleged doth  
demur in law to the said bill and for cause of  
Demurrer shew that the said bill charges fraud and  
prays for discovery without being sworn to as will  
appear by reference to the same and for divers other  
good causes of demurrer appearing in the said bill  
of complaint these defendants doth demur to the said  
bill and to all the matters and things therein contained  
and pray the judgment of this Honorable court  
whether they shall be compelled to make any further  
or other answer to the said bill and they humbly  
pray to be hence dismissed with their reasonable  
costs in behalf sustained

Silas 2 June 1846

D P Williams Esq

Marshall

for defendant

Caldwell & Ebenezer T Ryan  
vs { Bill in Chancery June 4<sup>th</sup> 1846

John & James Melvin

Indictment Order On this day comes the parties by their attorneys and the defendants demurred to the Bill which demurrae by the court is overruled.

Motions & Ordan On this day comes again the parties by their attorneys and on motion time of answering is extended until Thursday morning -

Answer of John Melvin to the Bill of complaint  
Filed 4<sup>th</sup> June 1846

The President Directors & Company of the Bank of Illinois  
for the use of A G Caldwell & E T Ryan vs

John & James Melvin —

The separate answer of John Melvin to the bill of complaint of the said complainants sheweth to the court that this defendant saving and reserving to himself all & all manner of exception to the said bill of complaints and leaving the said complainant to make such proof thereof as they may be able to, so much of the said bill as he is advised by counsel it is material to answer unto answering saith that true it is he sold the premises & property as set forth in said bill to the said James Melvin for seven hundred dollars (\$700) or thereabouts that the same was a bona fide sale for the said consideration without fraud connivance or collusion of any sort with the said James but agreed declared & intended to be a true and perfect & absolute sale of the said premises without any conditions whatsoever and that there were no reservations in the said sale whereby this respondent was ever under any circumstances

possible to have a reconveyance of said property or  
was to have any control over it or whereby it was to be  
divided or to descend to the children or descendants of the  
respondent all of which will appear more fully by the said  
deed of conveyance which is hereby prayed to be made a part  
of this answer & marked (A) but that it was a true perfect  
and absolute sale out & out - This respondent utterly  
denies any confederacy with other persons or with  
the said James for the purpose of injuring or  
deceiving or defrauding the said complainants  
or any other person whatever & further this respon-  
dent denies ever or at any time whatever having  
avaered or declared his intention to defeat the collection  
of the debts charged in said bill by making a  
conveyance of said property - that the said James  
paid this respondent the said sum of £ 700, for  
the said premises & property that the said James  
paid respondent the said £ 700 but respondent does  
not know out of whose funds he paid it - Respondent  
denies that the ~~consideration~~<sup>Consideration</sup> of said sale was furnished  
by him to the said James and does not know  
where he got the money or of whence —  
also he denies that there was any secret understan-  
ding or agreement between the parties that the said  
premises were to be held by the said James or  
considered to be for the use of respondent or any other  
of the children of the said John in any shape or  
form, that it was never it was never privately under-  
stood that the said James should not come under  
any actual liability for and in respect to said  
~~consideration~~<sup>Consideration</sup> that there was no preconcerted ~~intention~~<sup>intention</sup>  
~~or intentions~~<sup>intention</sup> or understanding de-  
cided arrangement as to said consideration —  
that there is no private understanding between

the said James & this respondent that the said James  
is to be governed & directed by respondent in the  
further conveyance of said premises. That the said  
John has not received since the said conveyance  
nor is he to receive the rents and profits from any  
person whatever that there were no person present at the  
execution of said contract to the best of his recollection  
That the date of the deed was 1844 and  
this respondent further answers & says that he has and  
had at the rendition of the said judgment in favor  
of the Bank one lot in New Haven in Galatian County  
Illinois worth \$100. & two forty acre tracts within half  
mile of New Haven situated in White County Illinois  
worth \$100 each acre of which <sup>bundes</sup> lands other property and  
have been subject to the said Executions and said  
defendant denies all and any manner of unlawful  
combination and confederacy, wherewith he is by  
the said bill charged, without this that there is any  
other <sup>matter</sup> cause or thing in the said complainants bill  
of complaint contained material or necessary for  
this defendant to make answer unto and not  
herein and hereby well and sufficiently answered.  
Confessed traverse and avowd or denies is true  
to the knowledge or belief of this defendant all which  
matters and things this deft is ready and willing to answer  
maintain and prove as this Honorable Court shall  
direct and humbly prays to be hence dismissed  
with his reasonable costs and charges in this  
behalf most wrongfully restrained

Subscribed & sworn  
to June 2<sup>d</sup> 1846

John Melvin

Geo. White

Answer of James Melvin to the Bill of complaint

Filed 4<sup>th</sup> June 1846

The President directors & Company of the  
Bank of Illinois for the use of H G Caldwell & E J Ryan vs  
John & James Melvin

The separate answer of James Melvin to the Bill  
of complaint of said complainants sheweth to the court  
that this defendant saving and reserving to himself  
all & all manner of exceptions to the said Bill of  
complaints & leaving the said complainants to make  
such proof thereof as they may be able to so much of  
the said bill as he is advised by counsel it is material  
to answer unto, answering saith that true it is he purchased  
- area of the said John Melvin the premises & property as  
set forth in said Bill for seven Hundred dollars  
(\$700.) or thereabouts, that the same was a ~~bona fide~~  
sale without fraud comivance or collusion of any  
sort on the part of this respondent with the said John  
and he alleges the same to be <sup>at</sup> true perfect and absolute  
purchase of the said premises without any conditions  
whatsoever of ~~the said premises~~ and that there were no  
reservations in the said sale whereby this respondent  
was ever under any circumstances possible to make a  
reconveyance of said property to the said John Melvin  
or whereby he was to have any control over it or to  
descend to the children or creditors of said John Melvin  
all of which will more fully appear by the said <sup>deed</sup>  
of conveyance which is hereby prayed to be made apart  
of this answer and marked (A) but that it was a true  
perfect & absolute sale out & out, this respondent  
utterly denies any confederacy with other persons  
or with the said John for the purpose of injuring  
or deceiving or defrauding the said Complainants  
or any other person whatsoever, also denies that  
there was any secret understanding or agreement

between the parties that the said premises were to be held  
by the respondent or considered to be for the use of said  
John or any of the children of the said John in any shape  
or form. And this respondent denies that he is to be  
governed or directed by the said John in any shape  
~~or~~ form in the further conveyance of said premises.  
That said John has not received the rents since  
the said conveyance nor is he to receive rents and  
profits from any person whatsoever, that there were  
no persons present at the execution of said  
Contract to the best of his recollection, that the date  
of the said deed was 1844 And this defendant  
denies all and any manner of unlawful  
combinations and confederacies wherewith he is  
by the said bill charged and this respondent  
denies that there was not privately understood &  
agreed that this respondent should never come  
under any actual liability for and in respect  
to the aforesaid considerations. Without this that there  
is any other matter cause or thing in the said complain  
ants bill contained material or necessary for this  
defendant to make answer unto and not herein and  
hereby well and sufficiently answered confessed  
traversed & avoided or denied is true to the knowl  
edge or belief of this defendant.

All which matters and things the defendant  
is ready and willing to aver maintain and prove  
as this honorable Court shall direct, and humbly  
prays to be hence dismissed with his reasonable  
costs and charges in this behalf most wrongfully  
sustained

Subscribed & sworn  
to June 4<sup>th</sup> 1846

Sonora White Cott

James Melvin

Bank of Iles vs of  
Ryan &

as In Chancery  
John & James Melvin &

In this cause the defendant by  
Marshall their solicitor submitted a  
motion on a former day of the term to  
dismiss the Bill because no replication had  
been filed to the answer and Comptt by  
A Thomas submitted a motion for leave to  
file replication which motions ~~being heard~~<sup>being heard</sup>  
being heard that of the complainants is  
sustained and that of the defendants is overruled  
and the said replication now filed ~~and~~ <sup>and</sup> pro time

Order made in the Gallatin Circuit Court at the  
October Term 1847  
The President Directors &c  
of the Bank of Illinois

John & James Melvin      In Chancery

Ordered that this be continued  
until the next term of this court

Order made in the Gallatin Circuit Court at the  
October Term 1848  
The President Directors &c  
of the Bank of Illinois

John & James Melvin      In Chancery

Ordered that this cause be continued  
until the next term of this court

Order made in the Gallatin Circuit Court at the  
June Term 1850  
The President Directors &c  
of the Bank of Illinois

John & James Melvin      In Chancery

Ordered that this cause be continued  
until the next term of this court

Order made in the Gallatin Circuit Court at the  
January Term 1850  
The President Directors &c  
of the Bank of Illinois

John & James Melvin      In Chancery

Ordered that this cause be continued

until the next term of this Court

15 Order made in the Gallatin Circuit Court at the  
October Term 1851

A G Caldwells & E. J. Ryan  
assignees of Bank of Illinois

as

In Chancery

John Melvin & James Melvin

on this day came the complainants  
by Thomas their attorney solicitor and suggest  
the death of A. G. Caldwells and it is ordered  
that this cause stand & be prosecuted in  
the name of E. J. Ryan surviving complain-  
ant and that this cause be continued with leave  
to take depositions &c

Replications filed June pro tem as  
of June Term 1846

In the Gallatin <sup>bility</sup> Circuit Court  
The President Directors & C  
of the Bank of Illinois

In Chancery

John Melvin & James Melvin

And the said complainants by W  
Thomas their trustee and solicitor for Replication  
to the answer of said defendant John Melvin say  
that the matters and containments and set forth in  
their bill are true certain and sufficient to  
entitle them to a decree in the premises and that  
the matters stated in the answer aforesaid  
are untrue so far as they contradict or traverse  
the allegations in the Bill all which &c wherefore so  
Wm Thomas solicitor

And the said complaints for replication to the  
answer to the ass<sup>s</sup> of the Defendant James Melvin  
say that the matters and things contained in and  
set forth in the bill aforesaid are true certain and  
true sufficient and that the matters and things  
stated in the answer are ~~otherwise~~ evasive and  
so far as they contradict or traverse the matters  
alleged in the bill are untrue all which to  
Wherfor &c McThomas Solicitor  
Filed June Term 1846

### Exhibit A,

This Indenture made and entered into this  
twenty second day of October in the year of our  
Lord One thousand eight hundred and forty  
four between John Melvin and Martha his wife  
of the first part of the County of White and  
State of Illinois and James Melvin of the same  
County and State of the second part,

Witnesseth that the said party of the first  
part for and in consideration of the sum of  
seven hundred dollars to them in hand paid the  
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged have  
granted bargained and sold and by these presents  
do grant bargain sell and convey unto the said  
party of the second part his heirs and assigns  
all those certain lots or parcels of land situate  
in the town of New Haven and known as on the  
recorded plot of said town as lot fifty four and  
half of lot fifty five to have and to hold the above  
described bargained and <sup>granted</sup> described premises  
unto him the said party of the second part

his heirs and assigns forever as a good and indefeasible estate ~~for~~<sup>in</sup> fee simple and the said parties and the said parties of the first part for themselves and their heirs covenant and agree to and with the said party of the second part his heirs and assigns that they will forever warrant and defend the said granted and bargained premises against all persons claiming or to claim the same otherwise than under this Indenture In witness whereof the said parties of the first part have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year first above written

John Melvin *(Read)*  
Martha <sup>her</sup> Melvin *(Read)*

State of Illinois }  
~~Galena~~ County } Before me the undersigned  
Justice of the peace in and for said County this  
day appeared John Melvin and Martha ~~and~~ his  
wife both personally known to me to be the real  
persons who have subscribed the foregoing deed and  
and severally acknowledged the same to be their  
free and voluntary act and Martha wife of said  
John being made acquainted with the contents of said  
deed and examined by me separate and apart from  
her said husband according to law declared on  
her private examination that she had executed  
the said deed and relinquished her right of  
dower in the premises thereby conveyed freely  
and voluntarily and without the compulsion  
of her husband all of which I accordingly  
hereby certify under my hand this 23 day  
of October 1844 George Heyser *JFB*

Evidence

In Gallatin County Circuit Court

Special term Feb 1852

The President Directors & co  
of the Bank of Illinois for the  
use of Ebenezer F Ryan surviving  
Assignee of the said Bank of Illinois

against Chancy

John Melvin & James Melvin

The testimony of witness produced and  
sworn in open court in this cause on the part  
of complainant First H A Line sworn states that  
he was acquainted with Gabriel Hardison John  
Melvin and James Melvin at and before 1844 Said  
James is the son of said John Melvin that in 1841 the  
said Hardison transferred to the said John Melvin  
and one Marritt Taylor notes and accounts on  
various individuals amounting to between 45 &  
4700 dollars to be collected by said Melvin and  
Taylor and applied to the payment of debts due  
to the Bank of Illinois for the whole or a part  
of which said Melvin and Taylor were security

Witness does not know how many of said debts  
were collected but thinks the larger part of them  
were collected. Hardison had been a merchant at  
New Haven and witness was his clerk and was present  
at the time of the transfer of the notes and accounts  
to the said Melvin & Taylor that the fact of this  
transfer was notorious in and about New Haven -  
that in fall of 1844 the said John Melvin sold to James  
Melvin an interest in a grocery store owned by  
said John & witness for \$342 or about that sum - and  
shortly thereafter conveyed the lots in New Haven that  
the said John subsequent to the aforesaid sales ~~sold~~

Marietta a widow Lady in White County and has since lived  
her on the farm in her possession a few miles from  
New Haven - witness does not know that said John  
has owned any real estate since since the sales aforesaid  
that in November 1844 the said James Melvin was in  
moderate circumstances he was a carpenter & was engaged  
working at his trade - owned a house and lot in  
New Haven - he was also engaged running a Steam  
mill witness never saw said James in possession  
of as much as \$700 in money though he might have  
had that much and been able to have paid the  
\$700 to his father the interest in the grocery store  
purchased by said James of his father he the  
said James sold to another brother named Charles  
witness stated that said John & James Melvin have  
both been considered good for their contracts does not  
know the lots in New Haven could have been sold  
in 1844 for \$700 that at that time money was very  
scarce and property in New Haven could hardly be  
sold at any price for cash - at the time of the said  
conveyance by John to James ~~Debtors~~ the said  
John Melvin had other real estate in and about  
New Haven which ~~which~~ he about the same time  
conveyed away apart of it to another son as witness  
believes. John Melvin has had no real estate about  
New Haven since that witness knows of. John Melvin at the  
time of said conveyance was considered solvent and  
has always since been responsible and paid his  
debts - He lives in White County and has personal  
property but whether any real estate witness  
does not know. James Melvin was an honest  
and punctual man in his dealings and his  
credit was always good witness at the time of

Said Conveyance would have given him Credit  
for a thousand Dollars readily if he had required it,

Jesse Kirkham being sworn states that he was  
acquainted with Gabriel Hardison John Melvin and  
James Melvin he lived in New Haven in 1844 and  
previous to that time, that he knew the facts by  
reputation that Hardison had placed notes due  
accounts in the hands of John Melvin & Merritt  
Faytor to pay Bank Debts but had no other  
knowledge on that subject was acquainted  
with John & James Melvin in 1844 the latter is  
the son of the former - they were both solvent up  
to November 1844 witness heard of the sales or  
conveyances by John to James in the fall of 1844  
that said John has not owned any real estate  
since said Conveyance to the knowledge of  
witness. Subsequent to that time he married a  
widow lady in White County and has resided  
with her on the farm owned by her former  
husband - In 1844 the said James Melvin was  
in moderate circumstances, a house and lot  
in New Haven was a carpenter and worked at  
his trade never knew of his having as much as  
\$700 in cash - the lot and half lot in New Haven  
conveyed to him by his father dont know that lots  
could have been sold for more than \$500, cash  
and witness does not know that they could  
have been sold for that amount if they had  
belonged to witness he would not have taken less  
at that time money was very scarce and  
property in Remittances not in demand, or  
ready sale at any price, witness does not  
know the lot of land said to have been  
conveyed by John to James Melvin

James Melvin has never lived in or occupied the property conveyed to him in New Haven it has been occupied by tenants but to whom the rents were paid witness does not know the said John and James Melvin were considered solvent and good for their debts previous to the fall of 1844 and both have paid their contracts since that time as far as witness knows and both are reputed to be honest men. James Melvin was an industrious hard working man and was considered good for any contract <sup>that</sup> he would make. Witness knows nothing about the conveyance from John to James or of any fraud connected therewith. James as Carpenter helped to build the house that was on the lots conveyed by John to him but witness knows nothing about whether John owed him for his said labor or not.

The Records and papers of the two suits at common law referred to in the Bill prove the execution of one note to the President Directors &c of the Bank of Illinois by Gabriel Hardison & Slator David B. Wood and John Melvin dated 10<sup>th</sup> February 1840 for \$169.37 credited so as to reduce the amount to \$1038.17cts that suit was brought on that note against the makers process served on John Melvin 16<sup>th</sup> October 1844 on David B. Wood 23<sup>rd</sup> September 1844 and the appearance of parties being entered judgment was obtained 14<sup>th</sup> November 1844 for \$1394.60 cents on which execution was issued to the Sheriff of Gallatin County and returned no property found. Also the execution of another note to the said President Directors and company by Gabriel Hardison David B. Wood and Bennett

Hill and John Melvin on the 30th of April 1842 for  
£ 367.10 cents suit was commenced on this note and  
process served on John Melvin on the sixteenth  
October 1844 and on David R. Wood and Bennett  
Hill on the 23rd September 1844 and judgment  
entered 14th November 1844 for £ 96.70 cents on which  
execution was issued and returned no property.

The testimony of witness produced & sworn  
on the part of defendants -

Robert Kirschaw states that he has  
resided at New Haven since 1837 during which time  
he has been acquainted with defendants John  
Melvin & James Melvin the said James was  
was a House Carpenter and worked at his trade  
for a living previous to 1844 In 1838 or 9 he the  
said James and his partner Mr Gallaher  
built a frame House for John Melvin on one of  
the lots in controversy in this suit the cost of  
which witness supposes would have been seven  
or eight Hundred Dollars the House was subsegu-  
ently occupied by said John as a residence until  
1843 or 1844 when the wife of said John died and  
he ceased to keep House In 1844 the said James  
and Mr Gallaher & witness took a lease on a mill  
above New Haven for five years and run the  
mill for about four months when witness sold  
his interest in the establishment to said  
Melvin & Gallaher for five Hundred Dollars  
and after that time said James Melvin and said  
Gallaher runn and used the mill togeather for  
some years It requires but little capital to  
keep the mill in operation whilst witness had  
an interest in it the income more than paid  
expenses - In 1844 the said James owned a half lot

in New Haven on which he resided previous to that time in  
a small frame Building when he said James became  
interested in the mill he left New Haven and resided at the  
mill the said James was an industrious and economical  
man of moderate means but his credit <sup>was</sup> good and  
though sometimes embarrassed he could <sup>always</sup> obtain credit  
because of confidence in his Honesty witness knows  
nothing about the sale of property in controversy  
at the time it was made He was absent at that  
time ~~does~~ not know but that said James might  
have raised as much as seven Hundred Dollars at  
that time out of his individual means it could have  
been raised out of the partnership means dont think  
that property in dispute would have sold for much in  
cash in 1844 at the time of the sale money was scarce  
and property in New Haven not in demand nor easily sold  
for cash at any price dont know that the property  
would have sold for five Hundred dollars in cash  
but it was worth more and cost a great deal more  
property was not in demand and New Haven was  
going down at the time the house rented for sixty  
dollars a year witness states that in 1841 Mr Hardison  
a merchant of New Haven sold out his stock of  
Goods on credit and turned over the proceeds of sale  
to said John Melvin and Merritt Taylor to be  
collected and paid over to the Bank of Illinois  
on Hardison debts for which said Melvin & Taylor  
were securities witness thinks the sale notes were  
made payable to Melvin & Taylor apiece It was  
generally known in and about New Haven  
that Hardison had placed <sup>means</sup> in the hands of said  
John Melvin & Merritt Taylor to <sup>pay the</sup> Bank debts and  
witness thinks that James Melvin must have known

the facts or had some knowledge of them - witness does  
not know <sup>any</sup> reason why said James Melvin Shance  
have paid \$700 the property conveyed to him by his  
father the said James never occupied the property -  
he was a widower at the time of the conveyance as  
witness thinks and did not keep House in the opinion  
of witness nothing could have been made by investing  
\$700 in the property conveyed to said James for  
the purpose of renting witness thinks that John  
Melvin still owns a small tract of land in the  
neighborhood of New Haven not improved cannot  
state the value - some time after the conveyance  
of the property by said John to said James the  
said John married a widow in white county and  
has since <sup>resided</sup> with her on the farm in her possess  
ion before the marriage - witness does not  
remember of any sale of property in New Haven  
for cash to the amount of \$700 during the  
latter part of the year 1844 - dont know of any  
person buying <sup>property</sup> in New Haven in 1844 for  
speculation except Sheridan who purchased one  
or two lots dont know whether James had  
means enough in 1844 to pay one thousand  
Dollars in cash for grocery and lots or not at the  
time of said conveyance he had a legacy  
coming to him from Kentucky

Alexander Kirkpatrick states that previous to 1844 he sold some Groceries to defendant John Melvin for which said John failed to make payment that he obtained a judgment against said John for about \$170 on which execution was issued and returned no property found witness believes that said John has had no property in his own name since he made the conveyance to his son James. The lots in controversy in this suit were sold on execution against said James Melvin and when the Redemption was about to expire witness agreed to furnish and did furnish the means to said James to redeem from said sale said James agreed to become responsible for the debt of his father as well as to refund the redemption money and executed a deed of trust to witness on the property to secure the said sums. subsequently the said James informed witness that he had conveyed the property to his Brother Andrew before the date of the deed of trust but the deed to his Brother had not been Recorded = and subsequent to that again paid witness about the amount advanced to redeem the property from the sale on Execution and at his instance witness took the note of said Andrew for the debt originally due from the father with a deed of Trust from him to secure the amount which deed of Trust witness still holds in full force & unsatisfied. All of these transactions occurred since 1844 witness states that he dont know what the house was worth in 1844 the building of it must have cost at least \$700 dont think the seven hundred dollars for the house and lot & half lot would have been an exorbitant price property had diminished some in value in New Haven in 1844 dont know what the property was then worth but would not have supposed it dear

at \$700, think it might be worth that now but can't say so  
with any certainty - That in 1844 money was scarce and  
property in New Haven was not in demand and ~~could~~  
could not be sold readily for cash at any price  
James Melvin was a House Carpenter in moderate  
circumstances witness thinks that no one would have  
been likely to have purchased property in New Haven  
for cash in 1844 for any other purpose than to secure  
a place of residence the Village was not then growing  
or being improved but on the contrary <sup>was</sup> declining,

The foregoing pages contain a statement of  
all the testimony in the case therein dictated

S. S. Marshall <sup>Esq.</sup>  
Cir Judge

Order made in the Gallatin Circuit Court  
At the February Session term 1852  
Ebenezer Z Ryan surviving  
designer of the Bank of Illinois

vs In Chancery  
John Melvin & James Melvin

on this day came the parties  
by their solicitors and this cause being heard  
upon bill answer Replication Exhibits and  
testimony taken in open court reduced to writing  
& filed as a part of Record herein and the court  
being sufficiently advised of and concerning the  
premises, does hereby order and decree that the  
bill herein be dismissed and that the complainant  
pay the cost and on the prayer of the said complain-  
ant Ebenezer Z Ryan an appeal is allowed herein  
from the foregoing decree to the supreme Court  
upon his executing an appeal bond and filing

the same with the Clerk of this Court within sixty days  
in the penalty of one hundred dollars with James  
Dunlap or John S Jones as security conditioned  
according to law,

know all men by these presents that we Ebenezer Z Ryan  
and James Dunlap are held and firmly bound unto  
John Melvin and James Melvin in the penal sum of  
One Hundred Dollars for the true payment whereof we  
bind ourselves our heirs &c jointly and severally firmly  
by these sealed with our seals and dated this fifth  
day of April 1852 the condition of the above obligation  
is such that whereas at the special Term of the circuit  
court of Gallatin County Illinois held for the hearing  
of Chancery causes in February 1852 in a suit in  
chancery pending before said court in favor of said  
Ryan as survivor of Albert G Caldwell and  
Ebenezer Z Ryan assignee of the President Direct-  
ors and company of the Bank of Illinois against  
the said John and James Melvin - It was ordered  
and decreed that the bill in said suit be  
dismissed and that said complainant should  
pay the cost from which decree an appeal was  
allowed to said complainant to the supreme  
court upon his executing an appeal bond with  
the said James Dunlap as security now in  
case the said Ryan shall prosecute the said  
appeal with effect or in case the decree aforesaid  
shall be affirmed shall pay all costs that  
may be awarded in the premises then this bond  
to be void otherwise to remain in full  
force and effect

Filed 28 day of  
April 1852

J P Hall clk

E Z Ryan <sup>Seal</sup>  
by his attorney in fact  
Wm Thomas

James Dunlap <sup>Seal</sup>

State of Illinois  
Gallatin County { S.S.

I H. Hall Clerk of the Circuit Court  
for Said County do certify that the  
foregoing twenty seven pages cont-  
ain a full true and complete  
copy of the record & files of my office  
in the before intitled suit to wit the  
President Directors & Company of the Bank  
of Illinois for the use of A. G. Caldwell  
and E. J. Ryan vs John Melvin &  
James Melvin, all of which appears  
from the records & files of my office  
Given under my hand and  
the judicial seal of said Cir-  
Court at Moundtown this  
28th day of April A.D. 1852.  
H. Hall Clerk

Cost in Gallatin Circuit Court \$15.63

Copy of Record                            8.50  
   \$24.13

State of Illinois S.S.

In the Supreme court of said state  
First Grand Division

Plaintiff 3 Ryan Complaining

Against the Bank of Illinois

against 3 Appeal from

John Melvin & 3 Deeds of Gallatin  
James Melvin 3 Circuit court,

And the said Appellant by W Thomas,  
his attorney comes and says, That  
in the proceedings of the said circuit  
court, and Record thereof, manifest  
errors have intervened to his  
prejudice, and he here sets down  
the following errors apparent on the  
Record aforesaid,-

First, The Court made in not  
making a decree in favor of the  
complainant instead of defendants,

Second; The Court is not discerning  
that the conveyance from John Melvin  
Plaintiff was void in respect to  
the rights of complainant, and  
is not discerning a sale of the  
real estate conveyed by said deed  
to be valid on the premises  
at Lenoir, - Wherefore he prays that  
the decree aforesaid be Remanded  
set aside or

W Thomas

Ininderbirra

for Appellant.

Sam'l Marshall

for Melvin -

(Signed)

E. Z. Rogers  
Spirillum of  
Bk of Illinois  
as 3 copies  
3 Record

John Melvin  
James Melvin

Appeal from  
Gallatin.

Filed the 17<sup>th</sup> Aug<sup>t</sup>  
A. D. 1852

P. D. Preston  
Prepared Clerk

State of Illinois 3<sup>rd</sup> ss.  
Supreme Court 3<sup>rd</sup> The People of the State of Illinois to the Sheriff  
of Gallatin County Greeting:

Because in the record and proceedings &  
also in the rendition of the judgment, of a plea which was  
in the Circuit Court of Gallatin County before the Judge thereof  
between Albert S. Caldwell and Ebenezer S. Ryan Assignees  
of the President and Directors of the Bank of Illinois Plaintiffs  
and Henry Eddy and others defendants it is said  
that manifest error hath intermixed to the injury of  
Said ~~Defendant~~ Plaintiff as we are informed by their  
complaint, the record and proceedings of which said judgment,  
we have caused to be brought into Our Supreme Court of  
the State of Illinois at Mt. Vernon before the Justices thereof  
to correct the errors in the same, in due form and manner  
according to law; Wherefore We Command you that by  
good and lawful men of your County, you give Note  
to the Said Mary E. Morris, Corn Posey Thomas Morris  
Sarah Lawler Thomas A Lawler George Beck and President  
& Trustees of town of Shawneetown, Illinois that they be and  
appear before the Justices of our Said Supreme Court, at the  
next term of said Court, to be holden at Mount Vernon in said  
State, on the (The first day of the next term thereof) 2<sup>d</sup>  
Monday in November next to hear the records and  
proceedings aforesaid, and the errors assigned if they shall  
think fit; and further to do and receive what the Said  
Court shall order in this behalf; and have you there  
then the names of those by whom you shall give  
the Said Plaintiff defendant notice to appear with this  
writ.

Witness the Hon. Samuel H. Treat, Chief Justice  
of our Said Court and the Seal thereof, at  
Mount Vernon this the 17<sup>th</sup> day of November,  
A. D. 1851

Finney D. Preston, Clerk  
Supreme Court

Supreme Court

Wm Brown and  
Ebenezer & Ryan  
Appliers of &c

vs.

Henry Eddy, et al

Billing for 12 days

and 1/2 11 October 1852

Derrring 7 -	\$3.50
9 Miles Richardson 2 stone	45
Attorneys 1 -	10
Peter Murray	\$4.00
Joseph Ledger 23 Aug	
Peter Baker 13 August	
Lower Derry 23 <sup>rd</sup> ultmo	

Received by occluding the within summons to Linda Beck  
12 December 1852 & by ordering to Sarah & Lander & Thomas &  
Lander 13 December 1852 by making to John & Richardson  
Joseph Loge done 23 January 1852 & to Peter Baker 13 August 1852  
& to Laura in May formerly known Derry 22<sup>nd</sup> October 1852 in the  
business of John Doe and Richard Doe source and  
lawful man of any County

Linda Baker Supt. B.C. Cala

In Supreme Court of Illinois  
First Grand Division  
Attest S. Goldmire & Elmer J. Byars  
Attorneys of the Plaintiff Directors  
Directors &c of the Bank of Illinois  
against

John D. Richardson, Orval Post,  
Peter McMurry, Joseph Logsdon,  
and Peter Barker, the President and  
Trustees of Shumardtown. —

William Linnick, Washington  
Linnick, Mary A. Linnick,  
Orval Post, William A. Fletcher,  
John J. Hardin & Margaret his wife,  
Harrison Wilson, Edward J. Nicholson,  
John J. Morris, Thomas Morris,  
Mary E. H. Morris, Sarah Ann &  
Thomas R. Lawler, John Marshall  
esq., John Marshall Jr., John D. Richardson,  
James Teabold & John McLean Peoples.  
The court will issue an alias sum's  
at alibi parties, — and endorse to  
be served on John D. Richardson, Orval  
Post, Peter McMurry, Joseph Logsdon  
and Peter Barker, as President and  
Trustees of Shumardtown.

William Linnick, Washington Linnick,  
Thomas Morris, Mary E. H. Morris,  
Sarah Ann Lawler & Thomas R. Lawler,  
the other defendants having been served.

B. G. Edwards  
for plaintiff.

Caledon & Ryans  
Appraisers of Banks  
of Illinois  
in <sup>3</sup> order for  
3 alias sum.  
Trustees of Shannonton

Filed the 18<sup>th</sup>  
Augt. 1852

A. D. Preston  
Clerk

STATE OF ILLINOIS, } ss.  
SUPREME COURT.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

To the Sheriff of *Gallatin* County,

Because in the record and proceedings, and also in the rendition of the  
~~judgment~~ which was in the Circuit Court of *Gallatin*

County, before the judge thereof, between *Albert G Calocville* alias  
*Elmer Z Ryans Apignees* of the President  
Director of the company of the Bank of Illinois  
as ~~complainants~~, and the President and  
Trustees of *Garrison* and others

defendants, it is said that manifest error hath intervened to the injury of said *Calocville & Ryans Apignees* as aforesaid.

as we are informed by ~~this~~ complaint, the record and proceedings of which said ~~judge~~, we have caused to  
be brought into our Supreme Court of the State of Illinois, at Mt. Vernon, before the Justices thereof, to correct

the errors in the same, in due form and manner, according to law; therefore we command you, that by good and

~~John D. Richeson, Orval Pool, Peter Kennedy, Joseph~~  
~~lawful men of your county, you give notice to the~~  
~~John D. Richeson, Orval Pool, Peter Kennedy, Joseph~~  
~~Gosclon and Peter Baker as President and Trustees of~~  
~~Garrison~~, and William Linnicke, Washington Linnicke,  
Mary A Linnicke, Orval Pool, William A. Cook, John S.  
Hardin and Margaret his wife, Harrison Wilson, Edward  
Nicholson, John T. Morris, Thomas Morris, Mary Ellerin,  
Sarah Anna Lawler, Thomas P. Lawler, John Marshall Jr.,  
John Marshall Sen., John D. Richeson, Amos Seabolt, and  
John ~~Seabolt~~ Peoples

that they be and appear before the Justices of our said Supreme Court, on the first day of the next term of  
said Court, to be holden at Mount Vernon, in said State, on the Second Monday in November next, to hear the  
records and proceedings aforesaid, and the errors assigned, if ~~they~~ shall think fit; and further  
to do and receive what the said Court shall order in this behalf; and have you then there the names of those by  
whom you shall give the said ~~defendants~~  
notice, together with this writ.

Witness, the Hon. SAMUEL H. TREAT, Chief Justice of our said

Court, and the seal thereof, at Mount Vernon, this

18<sup>o</sup>

day *August*

in the year of our Lord,

one thousand eight hundred and fifty-two.

*F. D. Preston* Clerk of Supreme Court

This Summons to be served on defendants,  
John D. Richardson, Oval Pool, Peter McMurry  
Joseph Logsdon and Peter Baker, as President and  
Trustees of Shannontown - William Linniate  
Washington Linniate, Thomas Morris, Mary & Holloway,  
Sarah Ann Lawler and Thomas P. Lawler, the  
other defendants having been served with  
process papers.

J. D. Preston Esq.  
Sup. Ct.

served by reading the within summons to Oval Pool and  
Peter McMurry in the presence of John Doe and Richard Roe  
good and lawful men of my County, the others John D.  
Richardson, Joseph Logsdon and Peter Baker served upon with  
an other summons 20<sup>th</sup> day of October AD 1852

John Barger Stiff, G. C. Esq.

Summons  
B. D. &  
3<sup>rd</sup> Oct.  
1852  
President of Shannontown

1.00  
Doeing 2<sup>nd</sup> 1.00  
Holloway 1.00  
John Barger Esq. Atty.

STATE OF ILLINOIS, SS.  
IN SUPREME COURT, FIRST GRAND DIVISION,  
Ebenezer Z. Ryan surviving Assignee of the  
President, Directors & Co, of the Bank of Illinois,  
Against

Writ of Error from Gallatin, the President  
and Trustees of Shawneetown and others.

William Limerick, Thomas Morris, Mary E.  
H. Morris, defendants in this cause, are notified,  
that a Writ of Error has been sued out in this  
cause, and Summons issued against them di-  
rected to the Sheriff of Gallatin County, returnable  
on the second Monday in November next  
at a term of the Court then to be holden at  
Mount Vernon, at which time they are requested  
to appear before said court, and unless they do so  
appear, Judgment will be entered against them  
by default.

F. D. PRESTON, Clerk of said Court.  
Mt. Vernon, August 18, 1852.—n5-4t.

State of Illinois Gallatin County  
The undersigned publishers of  
the "Shawneetown Argus" a  
Weekly newspaper published  
Weekly in Shawneetown  
Gallatin County Illinois,  
do certify that the aforesaid  
notices, in the case of  
Ebenezer Z. Ryan surviving  
Assignee of the President  
Directors &c of the Bank  
of Illinois, against The  
President and Trustees of  
Shawneetown and others, of the  
prosecution of a writ of error  
in Supreme Court, was  
published in said paper  
on the 27<sup>th</sup> day of August 1852  
and the publication thereof  
continued Weekly until  
the 5<sup>th</sup> day of November 1852.

Hutchinson & Nelson

Publication fee \$ 3 50

paid by W. Thomas.

J. Hutchinson

Pay and Services  
Agents of  
Bkt of Illinois  
4 3 Success  
Decr 1852.  
Master of Shawmut

Notice to Residents

State of Illinois.

In Supreme Court.

First <sup>Grade</sup> Division

Plaintiff 3 Ryan surviving  
Assignee of the Bank of Illinois

against. Writ of Error from Gallatin  
the President and Trustees of  
Shawmut Towne Boston

William Thomas being sworn states  
that he has been informed and  
believes that William Linnicke  
Washington Linnicke, Thomas Morris,  
May 21<sup>st</sup> Morris, George Hubbard,  
~~to Howard Redfield~~ his husband,

defendants in the foregoing cause  
are not made in the State of  
Illinois and that this place of residence  
is unknown to him. ~~Wm~~ Thomas  
he further states, that he ~~is~~ Thomas  
is the trustee of the Bank  
of Illinois, and as such,  
it is his right and duty  
to prosecute the foregoing  
suit, in the name of  
said Ryan surviving  
Assignee to

Swear to and subscribed before  
me this the 18<sup>th</sup> day of August  
A. D. 1852

J. D. Puerto, Clk

Supreme Court

Ebenezer G. Ryan  
Surviving affiant  
of the Bank  
of Illinois

W.T.

Mary Eddy, et al

affidavit for  
publication

Pitts 18<sup>th</sup> Augt  
1832

A. D. Weston, Atk

State of Illinois 55.

In the Supreme Court of said State  
First Grand Division  
Albert G. Caldwell & Ebenezer Ryerson  
Attorneys of the Plaintiff, Directors &c  
of the Bank of Illinois  
against <sup>upon Will of error from</sup>  
the President & Trustees of St. Sacremento,  
William Linnicke, Washington  
Linnicke, Mary & Linnicke,  
Brook Park, William A. Leetey,  
John J. Harbin and Margaret his wife  
Harrison Wilson, Edward J. Nicholson,  
John J. Morris, Thomas Morris,  
Mary & H. Morris, Sarah Anne, and  
Thomas E. Lawler, John Marshall  
Senior, John Marshall Jr., John  
D. Richardson, Amos Seabolt,  
and John McLean Pepple,  
and the Bank Caldwell & Ryerson  
Attorneys as aforesaid, by their  
Attorneys, come and say, That in  
the Record and proceedings of the said  
circuit court of Galatia County.  
Memphis errors have intervened  
and accrued to their prejudice,  
for which the decree of  
dismissing the bill in the cause  
should be Reversed, and they have  
set down, <sup>and affixing</sup> the following ~~as~~ <sup>to</sup> say.  
First; - the court erred in sustaining  
the demurrer to the bill aforesaid,  
and in dismissing the cause.  
Second; The court erred in not

concerning the demands to the bill  
aforesaid, and requiring the defendant  
to answer to the same.

Third The court found <sup>in</sup> ~~in~~ dismissing the  
Bill without prejudice.

Whereupon they pray that the demands  
aforesaid be dismissed and for  
nothing more.

Bros G Edwards & Son  
vs. J. S. Laffey.

And the said William Simnick, Washington Limited, May A. Simnick  
and Ovvile Pool, by <sup>and John F. Peffer</sup> W. B. Heates his counsel comes & says that  
in the record & proceedings & in the rendition of judgment aforesaid there  
are no such errors as set forth and alleged - Wherefore &c.

J. Olney & W. B. Heates for Simnick & Pool & Peffer

And the said William A. Barker, Edmund J.  
Nicholson, John J. Morris, Thomas Morris, ~~Mary E.~~  
H. Sarah Ann & Thomas H. Lawler, John Marshall  
Senr. & John Marshall Jr. and John McKee Peoples  
by Jno Olney their counsel comes & says that in  
the record & proceedings & in the rendition of  
judgment aforesaid There are no such errors  
as set forth and alleged - Wherefore &c

Olney, Sol. &  
J. S. Marshall, for part

And the said defts Mary J. Eddy, Elizabeth R. Eddy,  
Alice B. Eddy, John M. Eddy, Francis M. Eddy,  
John Warren Marshall, Sarah Marshall (now Sa-  
rah Wilson) Annie Marshall (now Annie Redman)

Sarah Marshall vs. Mary E. Morris & Maria  
son Wilson by S. S. Marshall their counsel come  
and ~~defend~~ say that in the Record & proceedings  
and the renditions of the Judge aforesaid  
there are no such errors as set forth and  
alleged. Therefore &c. S. S. Marshall Sol.

Coldwater & Ryan  
Suppliers of Bkt of  
Illinoian  
112 Equipment  
3 of Errors  
A Zoology Catalog

---

W